
CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
MONDAY, DECEMBER 11, 2023 7:00 P.M. 
 
For those wishing to listen live to the meeting, please go to ci.shorewood.mn.us/current_meeting for 
the meeting link. Contact the city at 952.960.7900 during regular business hours with questions. 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

A. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

B. Roll Call 
  Mayor Labadie___ 
 Callies___ 
 Maddy___ 
 Sanschagrin___ 
 Zerby___ 
  

C. Review and Adopt Agenda 
  Attachments 

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA The Consent Agenda is a series of actions which are being considered for 
adoption this evening under a single motion.  These items have been reviewed by city council and city 
staff and there shall be no further discussion by the council tonight on the Consent Agenda items.   
Any council member or member of city staff may request that an item be removed from the Consent 
Agenda for separate consideration or discussion.  If there are any brief concerns or questions by 
council, we can answer those now. 

Motion to approve items on the Consent Agenda & Adopt Resolutions Therein: 
 

A. City Council Work Session Minutes of November 27, 2023 Minutes 
 
B. City Council Regular Meeting Minutes of November 27, 2023 Minutes 

 
C. Approval of the Verified Claims List Claims List 
 
D. Approve Permanent Appointment for Administrative  City Clerk/HR Director Memo 
       Assistant and Approve Job Status from PT to FT   
 
E. Authorize Dispensing of Liquor at Arctic Fever Event Deputy City Clerk Memo 

 Resolution 23-123 
 

F. Approve 2024 City Council Regular Meeting Schedule City Clerk/HR Director Memo 
 

http://www.ci.shorewood.mn.us/current_meeting


CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Page 2 
 
 

G. Adopt Winter Operation Policy Public Works Director Memo 
 Resolution 23-124 

 
H. Approve Seasonal Warming House Attendant Hires City Clerk/HR Director Memo 

 
I. Approve Quote for SCEC Audio Visual Equipment Park/Rec Director Memo 

 
3.  MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR This is an opportunity for members of the public to bring an item, 
which is not on tonight's agenda, to the attention of the Council. Anyone wishing to address the 
Council should raise their hand, or if attending remotely please use the “raise hand” function on your 
screen and wait to be called on. Please make your comments from the podium and identify yourself 
by your first and last name and your address for the record.  Please limit your comments to three 
minutes.  No discussion or action will be taken by the Council on this matter. If requested by the 
Council, City staff will prepare a report for the Council regarding the matter and place it on the next 
agenda. 

   
4. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. TRUTH IN TAXATION PUBLIC MEETING Finance Director Memo 
(Public Comment Welcome) 
 
Adopt 2024 Property Tax Levy and General Fund Budget Resolution 23-125 
  
Adopt 2024 Shorewood Community and Event Center and Resolution 23-126 
Enterprise Fund Budgets      
 
Adopt 2024-2033 Capital Improvement Plan and 2024 Capital  Resolution 23-127 

 Project Fund Budgets           
 

B. Employee Service Recognition City Administrator Memo 
 
5. PARKS   

 
6. PLANNING 
 

A. Report by Commissioner Huskins on 12-05-23 Planning Commission Meeting   
 
B. Placing the 2040 Comprehensive Plan into Effect Planning Director Memo 
  Resolution 23-128 
 
C. Consider variance to side-yard abutting a public street Planning Director Memo 

Location: 24925 Amlee Road Resolution 23-129 
Applicant: David Hanson and Shelly Curran  

 



CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Page 3 
 
 
7. ENGINEERING/PUBLIC WORKS 

 
A. Pavement Management Update Public Works Director Memo

   
8. GENERAL/NEW BUSINESS 

    
A. Utility and Recycling Rates Ordinance Finance Director Memo 

 Ordinance 603 
 

B. Zoning and Land Use Fee Ordinance  Planning Director Memo 
 Ordinance 602  
 Resolution 23-130 
 

C. Update 2024 Master Fee Schedule City Clerk/HR Director Memo 
 Resolution 23-131 
  

9. STAFF AND COUNCIL REPORTS AND DISCUSSION 
 

A. Staff 
 

1. Website Update Communications Coordinator Memo 
 

B. Mayor and City Council 
  
10. ADJOURN 

 
 



2A

CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL CLOSED MEETING SHOREWOOD, MN55331
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 27, 2023 6:00P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL CLOSED MEETING

MayorLabadie called themeeting toorderat6:00P.M.  

A. Roll Call

Present.  MayorLabadie; Councilmembers Callies, Maddy, Sanschagrin, andZerby; City
Attorney Shepherd; andCityAdministrator Nevinski.  

Absent: None

B. Review Agenda

Zerby moved, Sanschagrin seconded, toapprove theagenda aspresented.  Motion
Passed.    

2.       CLOSED SESSION

Maddy moved, Callies seconded, toclose themeeting aspermitted byMinn. Stat. §  
13D.05, subd. 3(b) foraconfidential, attorney-client privileged discussion and
consideration regarding thepotential PFAS litigation: AFFFMulti-District Litigation No.  
2873 (“MDL”), including potential participation inthe3MandDupont Settlements.   
Motion Passed.    

TheCityCouncil entered intoclosedsession at6:01P.M.  

TheCityCouncil returned toopensession at6:38P.M.  

Maddy moved, Zerby seconded, Adjourning theCity Council Special Meeting ofNovember
27, 2023, at6:39P.M.  Motion passed.  

ATTEST:             
Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, City Clerk



2B

CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 27, 2023 7:00P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MayorLabadie called themeeting toorderat7:00P.M.  

A. Pledge ofAllegiance

B. Roll Call

Present.  MayorLabadie; Councilmembers Callies, Maddy, Sanschagrin, andZerby; City
Attorney Shepherd; CityAdministrator Nevinski; CityClerk/HRDirector Thone (via
videoconference); Finance DirectorRigdon; Planning Director Darling; Director of
PublicWorksMorreim; ParkandRecreation Director Crossfield; CityEngineer
Budde, andCommunications andRecycling Coordinator Wilson (viavideo
conference)  

Absent: None

C. Review Agenda

Councilmember Zerbyaskedtomove item2.E. offoftheConsent Agenda andontotheregular
meeting agenda.   

Sanschagrin moved, Zerby seconded, approving theagenda, asamended.   

Motion passed.  

2. CONSENT AGENDA

MayorLabadie reviewed theitemsontheConsent Agenda.   

Zerby moved, Maddy seconded, Approving the Motions Contained on theConsent Agenda
and Adopting theResolutions Therein.    

A. City Council Work Session Minutes ofNovember 13, 2023

B. City Council Regular Meeting Minutes ofNovember 13, 2023

C. Approval of theVerified Claims List

D. Approve Holiday Schedule

E. Approve Quote for SCEC Audio Visual Equipment (moved toitem 8.F.)  

Motion passed.  



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
NOVEMBER 27, 2023
Page 2of14

3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR

BarryBrown, 6050Burlwood Court, stated thathehadrecently reviewed thegrantapplications
andconditions forfulfillment oftherequirements regarding thebuckthorn removal andbelieves
thattheCity’scurrent proposal maybeoutofcompliance withthegrant terms. Hestated thathe
didnotbelieve thegrantor wouldmakeapayment under thecurrent conditions ofthework
proposal.  Hestatedthathehasreviewed thethreebidstheCityreceived andbelieves that the
PrairieRestoration bidlacksspecificity andisoutofsyncwiththeoriginal grantapplication.  He
explained thathehadprovided theCouncil withdetails fromthemanufacturer oftheherbicide
Garlon4whichstates thatitshouldnotbeusedanywhere nearthewetlands, theponds, orthe
stream.  Hestated thathewould recommend that: the Citynotusethisproduct oranyother
chemical treatment; clear thebuckthorn inareaonefirst, whichwillsatisfy thegrantterms from
theoriginal application; stayatleast twenty-fivefeetawayfromeithersideofthewaterway inarea
oneuntil theArmyCorpsofEngineers canprovide erosionguidance; contract withPrairie
Restorations toclearareaonewithoutchemical treatment, orpurchase equipment usingthegrant
funds, suchasaforestry mulcherandabrushmower.  Henotedthatthisequipment couldbe
usedinFreeman Parkbutalsoforotherbuckthorn removal projects throughout theCitywhen
needed.    

MayorLabadie thanked Mr. Brownforthenumerous e-mailshehassenttotheCouncil andCity
staffonthistopicandnotedthathislistofrecommendations washelpful fortheCouncil.  

Agentleman fromtheaudience askedifpeoplewhowerenotresidents oftheCitywereallowed
toaddress theCouncil.   

MayorLabadie explained thattheywouldbeallowed tospeakandwouldalsobeaskedtoprovide
theirnameandaddress fortherecord.   

4. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS

A. Spring/Summer Photo Contest Winners

Communications andRecycling Coordinator Wilson reviewed thewinners oftheSpring/Summer
PhotoContest Winners, including:  JudyVoigtEnglund – Summer Delights Category; MollyBragg

SpringWonder Category; MerryBethFreinmuth – People andPetsCategory; andBryanOakley
Wildlife Category.  

5. PARKS

A. Consider Quote forBuckthorn Removal Contract forFreeman Park

PublicWorksDirector Morreim gaveabriefoverview ofthevendor quotesforbuckthorn removal
inFreeman Park.  Henotedthatstaffwasrecommending awarding thecontract toPrairie
Restorations, Inc. inareastwo, three, andaportionofareaone.  Henotedthat therewerea
numberofquestions raisedatthelastCouncil meetingandexplained thattheyhadbeen
answered within thepacket materials.  Hebrieflyoutlined someoftheanswers toquestions that
hadbeenraised anddescribed theplanned treatment methodologies.  HestatedTyler Tretbar,  
withPrairie Restorations waspresent attonight’smeeting andaskedhimtoprovide anoverview
oftheprocess fortheCouncil.   



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
NOVEMBER 27, 2023
Page 3of14

Tyler Tretbar, PrairieRestorations, Inc. reviewed theprocess forremoval oftheextensive
buckthorn infestation atFreeman Park.    

MayorLabadie explained thatthisitemhadbeenontheagenda atthelastCouncil meeting where
theyhadamotion toclosethediscussion andthisitemisacontinuation ofthatdiscussion.  She
askediftheCouncilhadanyquestions forthePrairie Restorations representative.   

Councilmember Sanschagrin askedabout Garlon4, howitbreaks down, what itbreaks down
into, andabout thetoxicity associated withit.   

Mr. Tretbar stated thathecannot answer thosequestions butcould puthimintouchwiththeir
herbicide representative whowouldbeabletoexplain ittotheCouncil.   Hestated thatatPrairie
Restorations theymainly focusontheecological aspects ofaproject andnotedthat theyfollow
bestmanagement practices.   

Councilmember Sanschagrin askedifPrairie Restorations everdidremoval projects without using
Garlon4orotherherbicides.   

Mr. Tretbar stated thatitwasveryrareandnotedthattheotheralternative methods aremore
feasible onasmall scale.   

Councilmember Callies stated thatoneofthequestions raised byMr. Brownwaswhether this
wasfollowing therecommended procedures, particularly withthechemicals.  Shestated thatin
thematerials fromtheDNRitsaystoapply theproduct andifyouarenotgoingtodothatitdoes
notreallymakesensetostart theprogram.    

PublicWorks Director Morreim clarified thatthemethod staff isproposing iswhat isrecommended
bytheDNR.  Hestated thatnotfollowing upwithtreatment wouldmost likelynotgoingtoprovide
thedesired effect foreradicating orgreatly reducing theamountofbuckthorn inthearea.    

MayorLabadie stated thattheproposal focuses onzones two, three, andpartofone.  Shenoted
thatMr. Brownhadrequested thatbuckthorn becleared inzoneonefirstandaskedPublic Works
Director Morreim toexplain theplanned orderoftheremoval intheorderofzones two, three, and
one.   

PublicWorksDirector Morreim explained thatduring thepublic meetings, therewasconcern
expressed aboutsomeoftheproperties backing uptotheparkandthevolumeofremoval
necessary inthatarea.  Hestated thatdoingareastwo, three, andpartofonereduce theoverall
removal.  

Councilmember Maddy stated thathisunderstanding wasthattheplanwasgoanddoahuge
sweepandgetthebigstuffandthenstartmanaging andmaintaining things likeproper regrowth
intheforestecosystem.  HeaskedhowfartheCityhadgottenwiththeirmaintenance plans.    

PublicWorksDirector Morreim explained thatwhat theyarelookingatforthisarea, ingeneral,  
forongoing maintenance, wouldbelookingattreatment nextfallandreestablishing something in
2025.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
NOVEMBER 27, 2023
Page 4of14

Councilmember Maddy askedifthatmeant thelongtermplanwasnottousechemicals every
year.  

PublicWorksDirector Morreim statedthatwascorrect.   

Councilmember Zerbystated thathelikeswhatheseeswiththeexperiments thatFriendsofthe
Mississippi Riverhavedonewithexhausting theplantsandthinksthiscouldalsobepartofthe
ongoing maintenance.  Hestated thatGarlon4isawidelyavailable treatment thathomeowners
canpurchase andwasnotanindustrial product.  Hestated thattheyhavetheadvice fromthe
DNRandbelieves thattheusewillbeassparing aspossible.  Henotedthathethinks theCity
needs togetthisworkdoneandreminded theCouncil thatthisgrant isnearly twoyearsoldat
thispoint.    

PublicWorksDirector Morreim stated thatthegrantdoesnotallowforcapital purchases which
hadbeensuggested byMr. Brown.  

Councilmember Zerbysuggested thatthistypeofpurchase shouldbepartoftheCity’sbudget
discussions nextfall.   

MayorLabadie stated thatshefeltthatMr. Brownhadmadeagoodsuggestion andwouldlike
the Council todiscuss itprior tothefall.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin stated thathedidnotfeelheknewenough aboutGarlon4tosupport
thisaction.   

MayorLabadie askedwhatkindofinformation Councilmember Sanschagrin feltheneeded.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin stated thathestillhadquestions about toxicityandwhatitbreaks
downinto.    

Councilmember Calliesstated thatthiswastheDNR’srecommended method andnotedthatthe
Citywasnotproposing tohavewidespread spraying offarmfields.  Shestated thatshewas
comfortable thattheprofessionals have recommended thistypeoftreatment.   

Councilmember Sanschagrin reiterated thathedidnothaveenough information.    

Mayor Labadie notedthatshehadbeenaskedaquestion earlier todayaboutGarlon4beingused
inproximity towetlands.  Sheaskedabout thetopography intheareaandiftherewereany
concerns about that.   

PublicWorksDirector Morreim explained thattheapplication oftheGarlon4isveryexact and
wouldbedobbed directly ontothestump whichmeant thattherewouldnotbeanyspraying.  He
notedthatthefollowuptreatment could involve moreofasprayapplication.  Hestated thatin
wetland areas theywouldbelookingatadifferent product thanGarlon4.  Hestatedthatwhen
thistypeofchemical isapplied, thecontractor needs tobelicensed through theState.    

MayorLabadie stated thattherewasinformation included inthepacket fromtheDNRandasked
ifthisinformation depicted themethod thatwouldbeused inthiscase.   

PublicWorksDirector Morreim stated thatwascorrect.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
NOVEMBER 27, 2023
Page 5of14

Councilmember Callies statedthatwhentheCouncil heard fromthepestmanagement people,  
theyprovided theCitywithalistofallthepossible chemicals andstated thatshebelieves theCity
most likelyhastheinformation available regarding Garlon4.    

PublicWorksDirector Morreim stated thathewillhavetocheck theratings andnotedthathe
believes itwasnotconsidered tohavethelowest toxicity, butwiththeexactspottreatments in
thefirstround, makes itatreatment thatdoesnotgofurther thanthestump.    

Mr. Tretbar notedthatalltheherbicide information canbefoundonthesafetydatasheetwhich
isavailable online inPDFform.  Hestated thathebelieves thatGarlon4andGarlon3Afallinto
the ‘caution’ category soitisoneofthesaferherbicides thattheyuse.    

Councilmember Maddynotedthathehadjustpulled upthisinformation andconfirmed thatithas
a ‘caution’ designation.  HeaskedPublicWorksDirector Morreim about theinformation hecame
across regarding metabolizing insoilandwater.   

PublicWorks Director Morreim stated thatmanyofthestudies showthatitbreaks downrather
quicklyandnotedthattherewasnotanyopenwater intheareaatthistime.  Hestated thatthe
potential forthistoleach intosoilsisveryminimal.    

Councilmember Maddystated thathefeltasthough theCityshouldbemoreconcerned withevery
weedless lawnintheCityandthechemicals beingusedthanaonetimeapplication intheCity’s
parksystem.    

Public WorksDirector Morreim explained thattheCityhastobegoodstewards oftheir
environment andtrytobeasresponsible aspossible andreminded theCouncil thatbuckthorn is
notnative tothearea.  Hestated thattheirgoalistoeradicate itasmuchaspossible inorder to
restore nativevegetation tothearea.  

Councilmember Sanschagrin asked whatGarlon4breaks down into.    

PublicWorksDirector Morreim stated thathedidnotknowthatinformation andwouldneedto
research itfurther.    

Councilmember Zerbyexplained thathehadfoundananswer toCouncilmember Sanschagrin’s
question onthewebsiteandreadaloudaportion oftheinformation thatoutlined how Garlon4is
broken down.   

MayorLabadie noted thatshehadspokenwithMr. Brownearlier todayand hadinformed him
thatthiswasnotapublichearing butnotedthatshewould liketogranthimthecourtesyofasking
twoquestions during thisCouncil discussion.   

Mr. Brownstated thathisquestions wereforMr. Tretbar.    

CityAdministrator Nevinski suggested thatthequestions bedirected toCouncil andthenthe
Council couldaskMr. Tretbar torespond.    

Mr. BrownstatedthatforGarlon4theyareallowed toapplysixquartsperacre/peryear.  He
notedthatunder thirty-twodegrees itismixedwithbarkoilandaskedhowmuchwouldbemixed



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
NOVEMBER 27, 2023
Page 6of14

withGarlon4forthisproject.  HeaskedifGarlon4wouldkillaspen, birch, boxelder, chokecherry,  
cottonwood, dogwood, elm, hickory, maples, bigleafmaple, andoaks.    

MayorLabadie askedifMr. Tretbar couldaddress thequestions raisedbyMr. Brown.    

Mr. Tretbar stated thattheywillmixGarlon4withbarkoilblueataratioof1:3.  Hestated thatfor
thequestion abouttheotherspeciesoftreesbeingeffected bythistreatment, theywouldbe,  
however, theywouldnotbedirectlyapplying theproduct tothosetreesorstumps whichmeans
thereislittletonochanceofhurting theminthisprocess.    

Councilmember Maddy askedhowmanyclearings similar tothishashebeenpartofwithPrairie
Restorations.  

Mr. Tretbarexplained thathehasbeendoingthisforalittleovertenyearsandhasprobably
treated about threethousand acres.    

Councilmember Maddy askedifhehadeverexperienced anadjacent killthatwasnotintended.    

Mr. Tretbar stated thathehadnotexperienced itwithGarlon4, buthaswithotherherbicides.    

Councilmember Maddy askedifhehadseensuccess inthelongterminkeeping thebuckthorn
awaywithannual management.   

Mr. Tretbar confirmed thathehadseensuccess andnoted thatthefollowupspraysarepretty
critical totheprocess.    

MayorLabadie stated thatshethinkseveryone isconcerned aboutbuckthorn andnotedthatthe
Cityhasacknowledged thatthereneeds tobealongtermplanandthisproject ispartofthe
process.    

Callies moved, Maddy seconded, toApprove theProfessional Services Agreement for
Buckthorn Removal with Prairie Restorations, Inc., including thequote, aspresented.   

Councilmember Zerbystated thatbuckthorn hasbeenaproblem intheCityforalongtimesohe
washappy toseethemdoingsomething toaddress thisissue, butcautioned staff touseanover- 
abundance ofcommunication withthepublic throughout thisprocess.  

Councilmember Sanschagrin stated thatheishoping that thisdoesnotbecome anestablished
approach inthefutureandwould liketheCitytoconsider otherbestpractices thatmaybe
available.     

Motion passed.  

6. PLANNING

A. Report byCommissioner Eggenberger forNovember 21, 2023 Planning
Commission Meeting

Planning Commissioner Eggenberger gaveanoverview ofdiscussion andrecommendations
madeattheNovember 21, 2023Planning Commission meeting.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
NOVEMBER 27, 2023
Page 7of14

7. ENGINEERING/ PUBLIC WORKS

A. Award Quote forSE Well Rehabilitation, City Project 23-07

CityEngineer Budde reviewed theneedtoreplace pneumatic valueswithin theSEWellBuilding,  
thefivequotes thatwerereceived, andoutlined therecommendation toapprove thebidprice
fromMNMechanic Solutions.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin askedifCityEngineer Budde hadanyobservations aboutthe
differences inthebidsthatwerereceived.    

CityEngineer Buddenotedthathewasnotsurewhytherewassuchadiscrepancy, butnoted
thatMNMechanic Solutions hasexpressed thattheywerecomfortable with theirbid.  Henoted
thattheyareaprettysmallshop, whichmeans theydonothavealotofoverhead costswhich is
probably onefactor intheir lowerbid.    

Councilmember Zerby askediftheCityconsidered MNMechanical Solutions tobearesponsible
bidder.   

CityEngineer Budde statedthatallofthefivebidsthatwerereceived areconsidered ‘responsible’  
bidders andexplained thatstaffselects whotheyknowhasagoodreputation ofworking inthis
industry.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin stated thatwhenthiskindofproject comesinunderbudgethe
askedwhathappened withthemoney thatwassavedandaskedifitwassomething thatcould
beusedtoreduce thelevyorplaced intoreserves.         

PublicWorksDirector Morreim explained thatthefundsusedforthisproject were Enterprise
Funds, sotypically, ifthingsareunderspent, theysimplystaywithin thatfundandcanbe
usedtowardsafuture improvement.    

Maddy moved, Sanschagrin seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 23-119, “AResolution
Awarding theLow Quote for theSE Well Rehabilitation Project, City Project 23-07.”   

Motion passed.  

8. GENERAL/NEW BUSINESS

A. Hazardous Building Declaration
Location:  5815 Club Lane

CityAttorney Shepherd gaveabriefexplanation oftherequest andreasons thattheCouncilwas
beingaskedtopassahazardous building declaration locatedat5815ClubLane.  Heoutlined the
historyoftheCityworking towards resolving theissuesonthisproperty withtheproperty owners
forthelastfifteen years.  Hedescribed thelegalprocessandpossible outcomes iftheCouncil
moves forward withthehazardous building declaration.  Hesharedsomephotosoftheproperty
andnotedthatotherswereincluded inthepacket.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
NOVEMBER 27, 2023
Page 8of14

Councilmember Sanschagrin stated thattheCityhadreceived communication fromthe
homeowner withtherequest thattheCouncil tablethisitemuntilJanuary 2024inordertosave
theirholiday cheer.  HeaskediftheCouncil coulddothatwithout impacting theprocess.    

CityAttorney Shepherd stated that realistically, theintended courtactionwould notbestarted
until the newyear.  Hestatedthatthismatterhasbeengoingonforabout fifteenyearsandthe
reality isthatthisisanunsafe structure.  Hestatedthathewould recommend thattheCouncil
adopt theresolution regarding thehazardous building declaration andexplained thattheproperty
ownerwillhavetheopportunity toremedy theissueorcontest thatdeclaration, butreiterated that
rightnowthisisanunsafe structure.  Hestated thatheunderstands therequest withthetiming
duetotheholidays, butreiterated that thishasbeengoingonforavery longtime.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin stated that, tothatpoint, another fewweekswouldnotbe
detrimental totheprocess.  

Councilmember Callies stated that, forpractical purposes, nothing willbehappening during the
holidays.   

Councilmember Sanschagrin agreed andexplained thatwaspartofhispointandwhyhewas
suggesting theCitywaitbecause itwillhelptheownerandprovide somecompassion tothe
process.  Hestated thatthewayhereadsthesituation istheyareinfinancial distress, which is
what isdriving thewhole issue.  Hestated thatthissituation isdifficult forhimbecause itlooks
likethese individuals willbehomeless andthisactionwouldputaShorewood familyoutoftheir
home.    

MayorLabadie statedthat thismatter isdifficult foreveryone andaskedCityAdministrator
Nevinski howthisitemhadlandedontonight’sagenda.   

CityAdministrator Nevinski stated thattheCityhasbeenworking withtheowners sincethe
summer andactively asking themtoprovide theinformation needed forabuilding permit which
theyhavenotdone.  Hestated thattheyhadcommunicated withtheproperty owner thattheCity
wouldbeworking onthisprocess thisfallandnoted thatithadoriginally beenscheduled for
November 13, 2023andtheproperty owners hadasked thatitbeextended intoDecember.  He
stated thatstaffstated thattheyfeltNovember 27, 2023wouldbeagoodmeeting forthisitem
andtheproperty owners wereagreeable tothatproposal.  Hestated thatheunderstands the
sentimental concerns surrounding theholidays, butreiterated thattheCityhasbeendealing with
thisforquitesometimeandthereareclearlysomesafety issuesatthisproperty.  Heexplained
thattheCityhasanobligation toenforce theStatebuilding code.  Hestated thathebelieves that
staff feelsthatthisisatthepointwhere thereissomeurgency togetthismatter resolved which
iswhytheyarerecommending thisactionbetakentonight.    

Councilmember Calliesaskedwhowaslivingonthisproperty.   

CityAdministrator Nevinski stated thatstaff’sunderstanding isthatthefamilydoesliveinthe
homewhichconsists ofafewchildren alongwithahusband andwife.    

Councilmember Callies asked iftherewouldbeanyliability totheCityforallowingadangerous
situation topersist thatcouldpotentially harmthisfamilyortheirholiday visitors.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
NOVEMBER 27, 2023
Page 9of14

CityAttorney Shepherd stated that likeCityAdministrator Nevinski stated, hefeels thattheCity
hasanobligation toenforce theStatebuilding code.  HestatedthattheCityhasbeentryingto
findawaytonotgodownthispath, however, therecord isclear frommultiple engineer reports,  
thatthisisanunsafe structure.  Hereiterated thatstaff’srecommendation istomakethatvery
clear through thisorder, thatthishazard needs toberemedied immediately.  

Councilmember Sanschagrin askedhowthisdeclaration wouldbedifferent thanthelastorder
thatfailed.   

CityAttorney Shepherd clarified thattheotherorderdidnotfailandexplained that itwasadopted
bytheCityCouncil.  Hestated thatthereweresomefiling issues intheDistrict Courtand, atthat
time, therewassomenegotiations between theCity’sformer legalcounsel andtheproperty
owners lawyer thattookplaceinordertoavoid thehazardous building action.  Hestatedthatthe
Cityhasgiventheproperty owners opportunities andhaveattempted tonegotiate withtheir
counsel totrytofindawaytoavoid thisactionandfindawaytoremedy thissituation inaway
thatwouldbelessburdensome forthefamily.  

Councilmember Sanschagrin stated thatthisisprivate property andquestioned whatthisaction
wouldbeprotecting theCityfrom.   

CityAttorney Shepherd explained thatoneoftheCity’sfundamental corefunctions isprotection
ofpublichealth, safety, andwelfare.  Hestated thatthissituation, tohim, isabsolutely within that
wheelhouse.  Hestated thatthisstructure isahazard totheindividuals whoarelivingthereand
alsotoanyone coming onto theproperty andfeelsthere isarealdanger totheresidents ofthe
City, including theproperty owners, based onthoseviolations.   

Councilmember Sanschagrin askedifthatmeantsomeone thatwastrespassing onthisproperty
couldsuetheCity.  

CityAttorney Shepherd stated thathewasnotheretomakeacallonthelegitimacy ofa
hypothetical lawsuit, buttheCityhasabuilding codeandInternational Property Maintenance
codethattheyhaveadopted.  Heexplained that theyareregulations/lawswithin theCityand
reiterated thattheCityisresponsible formaintaining those.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin expressed concern aboutwhatwillhappen totheproperty owners
afterthisprocess.    

CityAttorney Shepherd stated that theCitydoesnotknowifthepre-existing house isstructurally
sound, butnotedthatthereisthepotential thattheycould liveinthepre-existing homeoncethe
external structure isremoved.  Hestatedthatrightnowtheyhaveanexternal structure thatis
structurally unsound thatissituated ontopofthepre-existing home.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatthissituation hasbeengoingonforalongtimeandshealso
feelsbadforthisfamily, butnotedthattheyhavenotapplied fortheappropriate building permits
andhavebeenjustdoingtheworkknowing thattheyshouldnotbe.  Shestated thattherehave
beenmanyattempts bytheCitytoworkwiththemandisnotsomething where itis ‘allofasudden
theholidayseason’ andnowtheCityistellingthemtheyneedtomoveout.  Shequestioned at
whatpoint theproperty owners shouldbeheldresponsible fortheiractions andinactions thatare
harmful tothemselves butalsopotentially others.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
NOVEMBER 27, 2023
Page 10of14

Councilmember Sanschagrin stated thathewould agreethattheseproperty ownershavemade
mistakes, butnoted thateveryone makes mistakes.    

MayorLabadie stated thattheproperty owners, iftheCouncil takesthisaction, willhavethirty
daystoremedy theirmistakes.    

Councilmember Calliesstated thatshewoulddisagree withCouncilmember Sanschagrin’s
characterization oftheseactionsasa ‘mistake’.   

Councilmember Sanschagrin stated thatheagreed thatitwasmorethanamistake.    

Councilmember Zerbystated thathisrecollection ofthissituation fromhispasttimeserving on
theCouncil, wasthatthisworkwasdonebyarelative whohadpassed away.  Hestated thatat
thattimetheymetwiththeCouncil andexplained thattheyhadjusttakencontroloftheproperty
andhadaskedfortimetoseewhattheycoulddotoaddress theissues.  Hestated thatinhis
opinion, theyhavemadethechoice tousethishomeastheirhomeafterthatsituation and
conversations.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatherunderstand wasthatfatherandsonstookonthisproject
together.    

Councilmember Maddy stated thatheunderstands theyareusing logicandalegalapproach to
trytoprotect theCityandalsousingcompassion tosaythatthisissomeone’shome.  Hestated
thatheusedtodothisforalivingandexplained thathehadcondemned homes thatweremuch
nicer thanthisone.  Hestated that, inhisopinion, what isdepicted insomeofthesepictureswas
downright dangerous.  Hestated thatheunderstands thatcompassion issomething that should
begiven, buttherecord shows thattheyhavebeengiven fifteenyearsofcompassion fromthe
City.  Hestatedthatifsomething happens inthathousetoachildoraguestbetween nowand
thetimethisisabated, hewouldnotbeonrecordsaying thatitwasagood ideatoletpeople live
inthathome.  Hestated thatheiscompletely comfortable starting thisprocess tonight inorderto
getthisresolved andbelieved thattheyowedittothepeople tosaythatenough isenough.     

MayorLabadie stated thatsheagreed andstated thattheyalsooweittotheminorchildren that
arelivinginthehome.    

Maddy moved, Callies seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 23-120, “AResolution
Ordering Repair orRemoval ofHazardous Conditions.”   

Councilmember Sanschagrin explained thathewouldbevoting against thisactionduetothe
timing.  Henotedthathewouldagree thatthestructure isnotsafeinitscurrent form, butsinceit
hasalready beenfifteenyears, hedidnotseeanyissuewithwaiting another sixweeksbefore
taking thisaction.   

Motion passed 4-1 (Sanschagrin opposed)  

B. Renewal ofProperty and Casualty Insurance Premium

CityAdministrator Nevinski reviewed theexisting property andcasualty coverage fortheCity, the
2024budgeted amounts,  andvarious liability scenarios, including thepossibility forincreasing
coverage.     



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
NOVEMBER 27, 2023
Page 11of14

Councilmember Zerbynotedthat thestaffmemostated thattheCity’scoverage wasthesameas
itwasin2023, butthatwouldbea25% increase.  Heaskedifthatwastrueforallcitiesandifthe
LeagueofMinnesota Citieswasincreasing everyone’spremiums by25%.    

CityAdministrator Nevinski stated thathecannotsaythattheyareincreasing everyone’s
premiums by25%, buthisunderstanding, fromtheagent, isthatcostshavegoneupandthere
hasbeenageneral rateincrease.  Hestated thattheCityhasalsohadsomeexperience with
somelawsuits andincreased exposure inthatmanner, so, justlikecarorhomeowners insurance,  
yourratesgoupifyouareusingyourinsurance.  Heanswered Council questions related to
coverage details.   

Councilmember Callies askediftherewasarecommendation fromtheCity’sagentoncoverage
amounts.    

CityAdministrator Nevinski stated thattheagenthadnotgiven theCityanexplicit
recommendation andactually suggested thattheCityspeakwiththeirattorney.  Hestatedthat
hetendstoworrymoreaboutcybersituations andnotedthattheCouncil afewmeetings agohad
decided tonotwaivethetortlimits.   

Councilmember Sanschagrin askedforanexampleofwhatcouldcause theCitytogointothe
twomilliondollaramount forexcess liability.   

CityAdministrator Nevinski referenced examples ofaFederal civil rightsclaim, asituation where
theCityentered intoacontract andhadagreed theindemnify theotherparty, oratakings claim.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin asked withtheproposed 25% increase whether theCityhadany
otheroptions besides theLeagueofMinnesota Cities forthiscoverage.    

CityAdministrator Nevinski explained thattheLeagueofMinnesota Citiesistheprimary option
available.  Hestated thathebelieved thattherewereonlyahandfulofcitiesthatwerenot
participants intheLeague’scoverage andnoted thattheyexist forthebenefitofserving cities
andwouldguess thattheyarethemostcosteffective optionanduserfriendly.    

Councilmember Calliesstated thatshecanunderstand thepointbeingmadeaboutcyber
coverage andnotedthattypeofthingisheardaboutmoreoftenthaninthepast, butwasnotsure
about theincrease inexcess liability.  Sheagreed thattheCityhashadsome incidents ofliability,  
butnothing likeacitylikeMinneapolis hasseen.    

MayorLabadie stated thatCouncilmember Zerbyhasknowledge withcomputers andaskedhim
toweigh inonthismatter.    

Councilmember Zerbystated thathewouldagree thatcyberattacks areontheriseandseemto
bemoreandmoreprevalent sohefeltitwouldbeagoodideatogettheFirstPartyCyber
coverage.  Henotedthatheagreedwiththehesitancy expressed byCouncilmember Callies
about theincreased liability coverage because hewasnotyetsurethattheCityneeded it.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin stated thathewasalsoonboardwiththecyber coverage butfelt
theneedfortheexcess liabilitywasquestionable.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
NOVEMBER 27, 2023
Page 12of14

Zerby made amotion toApprove theProperty and Casualty Renewal Premium of $114,112,  
which includes First Party Cyber coverage of $500,000, and authorize theCity
Administrator toexecute any documents necessary toimplement thecoverage.   

Mr. Brownspoke fromtheaudience andrequested thathebeallowed toaskaquestion.   

MayorLabadie explained thatthisagenda itemwasnotapublichearingandtheCouncilwasnot
taking testimony fromtheaudience onthismatter.    

Mr. Brownaskedifanyone hadevertakenalookatthedeductible because thatactioncouldhelp
reduce theirpremiums.   

CityAdministrator Nevinski explained thattheCity’sdeductible is $2,500andbelieves thatis
standard foraCitythatisthesizeofShorewood.   

Callies seconded themotion.   

Motion passed.  

C. Premium Option Workers Compensation Insurance

CityAdministrator Nevinski reviewed theoptions relatedtoworker’scompensation andexplained
thatstaffwasrecommending moving froward withthe ‘Regular Premium’ option.  

Councilmember Sanschagrin askedwhathadbeen included inthe2024budget forthisitem.   

CityAdministrator Nevinski stated thathebelieved that therewasabout $90,000budgeted for
thisitem, sothiswouldbecoming inunder budget.    

Sanschagrin moved, Maddy seconded, Approving theSelection oftheRegular Premium
option and authorize theCity Administrator toexecute theNotice ofPremium Options.    

Motion passed.  

D. Participation inDuPont and 3MPFAS Settlements

CityAdministrator Nevinski reviewed thetwoclassactionsettlements thatarehappening against
DuPont and3Mfortheproliferation ofPFAS inpublicwatersystems.  Henotedthatbecause a
smallamount hasbeenfoundinoneoftheCity’swells, theyareaneligible claimant andexplained
theCity’soptions.  Heexplained thatthereareabout fifteendefendants andbymoving forward
andworking withthelegal firmofLockridge Grindel Nauen, itwillhelpsettheCityupforfuture
settlements thatmaycome.    

Maddy moved, Zerby seconded, Directed theCity toremain intheSettlement Class,  
directing thesubmission ofthesettlement claim forms, and authorizing theMayor tosign
theattached Retainer Agreement with Lockridge Grindel Nauen, P.L.L.P. and Napoli
Shkolnik.   

Motion passed.  



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
NOVEMBER 27, 2023
Page 13of14

E. Approve Earned Sick andSafe Time Policy

CityClerk/HRDirector Thonegaveanoverview oftheproposed updates totheSickandSafe
TimePolicy (ESST).    

Sanschagrin moved, Labadie seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 23-122, “A
Resolution Approving Earned Sick and Safe Time Policy and Personnel Policy/Employee
Handbook Updates.”   

Motion passed.  

F. Approve Quote forSCEC Audio Visual Equipment (formerly Consent Agenda
item 2.E.)  

ParkandRecreation Director Crossfield gaveanoverview oftheCIPplanandthe
recommendation bystaff tousemoneyplanned forpainting andremodeling forupdating theA/V
equipment fortheSCECinstead.  Shegaveanoverview oftheproposed quote foramobileA/V
cart, portable screenandprojector.    

MayorLabadie notedthattheSLMPD hadrecently heldaprogram fortheseniors intheSCEC
regarding scamsandfraudandwouldagree thatthescreens wereverydifficult toseeandread
andupgraded equipment wouldhavebeenhelpful.  

Councilmember Zerbystated thatheagrees thatthisequipment isneeded butquestioned the
pricing.  Henotedthathehaddoneasimple searchonAmazon forthisequipment andfound
considerably lowerpricing forthesamemodel numbers.  Hestated thatheunderstands that
oftentimes contractors willbuild intheirservice tothepricing, butin thiscase, theservice is
outsideoftheequipment total.  Hesuggested thattheCitygobackandaskthevendor tosharpen
theirpencilsbecause heseesafewthousand dollars thatcanbecarvedoffofthisprice, ifthey
weretopurchase theequipment ontheirownandjustpayforinstallation.     

ParkandRecreation Crossfield stated thatshecancontact thevendorsandnotedthatthis
amount waslower thantheoriginal bidamount.  Shestated thatshewastoldthiswasaslowas
hecouldgetitwithoutathirdringofapproval.  Shenotedthatthe vendorhadmentioned
commercial versus residential costs, butifCouncilmember Zerbyhadfoundthesamemodel
number inhisresearch, shewillseewhatcanbedone.  Sheexplained thattheyhadoffered to
justdeliver theequipment andhavetheCityinstall itthemselves, butstated thathermottohas
been ‘rec, nottech’ soshewasnotsureshewascomfortable withthatoption forthings likethe
rallybaranditscomponents.    

Councilmember Zerbystated thathewouldbewilling toassistwiththeinstallation.  

MayorLabadie stated thatstaffwillexploreotheroptionsandbringthisbackforafuture agenda.  

9. STAFF AND COUNCIL REPORTS

A. Staff

ParkandRecreation Director Crossfield notedthat theSCEChasforty-sevenrentals scheduled
forDecember.  Shestated thattheCityhadsentoutsponsorship inquiries tovarious businesses



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
NOVEMBER 27, 2023
Page 14of14

andseveral havebeenreturnedbytheUSPSandmarked as ‘vacant’ eventhough theyknowthe
business isstill there.  Sheencouraged theCouncil tohelpspread thewordthatsponsorship
opportunities areavailable forArcticFever.    

PublicWorksDirector Morreim stated thattheywerebetween seasons sotheyaredoingsome
additional sweeping asweather hasallowed andareplanning treetrimming astheymoveinto
thewinter.   

Finance Director Rigdon reminded theCouncil thattheTruth inTaxation meeting willbeheldon
December 11, 2023at7:00p.m.  

CityAdministrator Nevinski stated thattheEureka RoadOpenHousewouldbeheldonNovember
30, 2023at5:30p.m. atCityHall

B. Mayor and City Council

Councilmember Maddy commended, Finance Director Rigdon forthewriteupintheShoreReport
because itdidagoodjoboflayingoutthetaxlevyandhowitworks.    

Councilmember Calliesstated thatshehadattended thePlanning Commission meeting last
week.  Shestated thatsheagreed withCouncilmember Maddyandnotedthatshehadgottena
lotofpositivecomments ontheShoreReport government articles.    

MayorLabadie stated thattheHighway 7Coalition metanddrafted abriefoverview letter thatwill
besentoutthisweek.  Shestated thatshehadparticipated intheStateoftheCitiesAddress,  
alongwiththemayors ofExcelsior, TonkaBay, Greenwood, Deephaven, andMinnetonka, which
wassponsored bytheExcelsior Chamber ofCommerce.    

10. ADJOURN

Maddy moved, Zerby seconded, Adjourning theCity Council Regular Meeting ofNovember
27, 2023, at9:10P.M.    

Motion passed.  

ATTEST:             
Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, City Clerk

































Item
2D

CityCouncilMeetingItem

Title/Subject:   Approve Permanent Appointment andJobStatusChangefrom .5FTEto
1.0FTEforAdministrative AssistantMelissaStrandmo

MeetingDate:  December 11, 2023
Preparedby:   SandieThone, CityClerk/HumanResources Director
Reviewedby:   MarcNevinski, CityAdministrator

MarieDalring, PlanningDirector
Attachments:   Administrative Assistant (Administration/Planning) JobDescription

Background
MelissaStrandmo washiredonJune14, 2023, asaPart-TimeAdministrative Assistant working
20hoursperweekintheAdministration department forthecity.  Melissahasprovedagreatfit
fortheteamandtheCityofShorewood inthiscapacity.  Shehascaughtontothe
responsibilities andthedemandsoftheposition quicklyandexcelsatprovidingafriendlyand
welcoming demeaner forallwhovisitorcallCityHall.  Iamenthusiastically recommending
Melissa forapermanent appointment, effectiveDecember 14, 2023, inthiscapacity.    

Duringthebudgetprocessearlierthisyear, thecitycouncilapprovedapart-time (20-hoursper
week) administration positionfortheplanningdepartment for2024.  Manyoftheduties
identified forthispositionwereadministrative innaturebutexclusive totheplanning
department.  Someofthedutiesidentified forthisposition includeadministrative assistance
withzoningregulations, applications, mailings, legalnotices, agendapacketpreparation, file
maintenance, andrentalhousing.  Theupdated PositionDescription isattachedforyourreview.    

Theresultsofmanystaffmeetingsonthesubjectculminated inofferingthepart-timeposition
toMelissaStrandmo, considering herdesiretohaveafull-timeposition, andhereffectiveand
positive trackrecordtodateintheadministration department.  Thepositionnowcurrently
reportstotheCityClerk/HRDirector.  Staffisproposing the1.0FTEpositioncontinue that
reportingstructure totheCityClerk/HRDirector forthe .5FTEadministration position andadd
MelissaasadirectreporttoPlanningDirector forthe .5FTEplanningposition.  Melissa’s
proposed scheduleallowsfor2.5daysineachpositionandincludesaworkstation locationfor
eachpositionsothatthefrontdeskworkdoesnotdistractherwhensheisworkingonplanning
tasks. Staffbelieves thatwiththissolution, wewillbeabletoretainanemployeewhoatsome
pointmayhavesought full-timeemployment elsewhere andtakeanyguesswork outofthefit
ofanewhiretotheteamandtheorganization.    

FinancialConsiderations

Page1



Staff isrecommending Melissa’ssix-month stepincrease ofGrade 7, StepBofShorewood’s
Compensation Planof $26.23perhoureffective onher6-month anniversary dateofDecember
14, 2023.  Uponstarting full-timestatusonJanuary 1, 2024, theposition willremain non- 
exempt, PERA eligible, butwill thenreceive fullbenefits forregular full-timeemployees as
delineated inthePersonnel Policy.  Theposition isprovided forinthe2024Personnel budgets
ofAdministration (.5FTE) andPlanning (.5FTE).          

Action Requested
Staff recommends theCityCouncil approve Melissa Strandmo’spermanent appointment asof
December 14, 2023, andjobstatus change frompart-time (.5FTE) tofull-time (1.0FTE)  
effective January 1, 2024.  Motion, second andsimple majority voterequired.    



POSITION DESCRIPTION

POSITION TITLE: Administrative Assistant (Administration/Planning)  
DEPARTMENT:  Administration
ACCOUNTABLE TO: CityClerk/Human Resources Director (.5FTE)   

Planning Director (.5FTE)  
FLSA STATUS:  Non-Exempt

PRIMARY OBJECTIVE

Toprovide community-focused support totheadministration andplanning departments in
thecapacity ofadministrative assistant, ensuring effective service tothepublicconsistent
withCityCouncil policies, federal, state, andmetropolitan regulations.     

CITYVALUES & EXPECTATIONS

Supports andmodels apositive andproductive workplace culture basedonthecity’s
corevaluesofrespect, integrity, communication, positive attitude, teamwork, and
responsiveness.    
Supports organizational development efforts forahighperforming organization,  
employee engagement, workforce development, inclusion, equity, andperformance
measurement.      
Works cooperatively withothers; responds tointernal andexternal customers alike
providing exceptional customer service.  Develops andmaintains respectful and
effective working relationships withcoworkers andcommunity members;  
consistently bringsahigh levelofself-awareness andempathy topersonal
interactions.    
Proactively resolves conflicts based onthegreater goodoftheteam, thecity, and
thecommunity toensurearespectful andinclusive workplace.    
Embrace theCity’sMission, Management Philosophy andCoreValues/Attributes by
carrying outonesdutieswithahighdegree ofprofessionalism, honesty, and
truthfulness.    

November 2023 1



ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS OFTHEPOSITION

ADMINISTRATION

Provide community-focused support tointernal andexternal customers atCityHall.    

Provide clerical andadministrative support tovarious citydepartments andmaintains
staffphone lists, organizational rosters, andonline Administration calendar.      

Promote apositive customer experience within theAdministration andElections
departments andcontributes tothecity’smission ofproviding resident’squality public
services through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  

Provides NotaryPublic service tothecommunity andcity.      

Performs avariety ofmoderate clerical support workthatrequires general knowledge
ofMicrosoft applications andofficeprocedures.    

Serves asthefirstpointofcontact atCityHall including communications with
residents andstaff; answering phones, providing information tocallers, routing
callers todepartments, andmonitoring cityemailandforwarding and/orresponding
toinquiries.    

Greetsandassists walk-incustomers atfrontcounter withvarious applications,  
licenses, permits, andcollects payment andissues receipt forpermits.  

Processes andissues watermeter requests/permits.    

Processes over-the-counter building permits; plumbing, roof, window, door, siding,  
andsewer repair permits.  Prepares building permits forreview andassigns.    

Ensures that front-desk information isorganized andaccessible andthattheonline
document center (Laserfiche) ismaintained.  

Processes andassigns See-Click-Fixsubmissions toproperdepartment for
handling.    

Receives, sorts, opens, date-stamps anddistributes allincoming correspondence,  
including mailandpackages received atthecity.  

Schedules building inspections appointments andprepares inspection calendar for
building inspector.    

November 2023 2



Purchases officesupplies andmonitors officesupply inventory. Uponrequest,  
purchases furnishings andequipment foralldepartments.  

Prepares receipts anddailydeposit, balances pettycashandsubmits toFinance
Department.  

Assistalldepartments withmailings, special projects, employee events and
meeting preparations andreservations.    

Assists intheadministration ofallelections including attending training sessions;  
answering inquiries, issuance ofabsentee ballots, maintenance offilesandreports,  
andassembly andmaintenance ofvoting precinct supply boxes.  

Assistwithprocessing various licenses/permits suchasDog andMultiple Dog
Licenses, Horse Stable Permits, Fertilizer Applicator Licenses, Gambling Permits
temporary andbiennial); Solicitors; Massage Therapy, burnpermits, special event

andparking permits.   

Organize andmaintain administrative filingsystem; usestherecords retention
schedule tomaintain files.  

Assistwithpreparation anddistribution ofCouncil meeting agenda packets, as
needed.  
Assists thecityclerkwithprocessing datarequests.    

Assistwithpreparation ofgeneral city-related informational pieces andnewresident
information packets.  

Schedules WaterandSewer inspections forthepublicworks department.  

Assists withtheCity’sRecycling Program whennecessary andanswers residents
inquiries inregard torecycling.   

Assistwithcommunity events; SpringClean-Up, Shred Event, Community Events.   

PLANNING

Assists intheadministration oftheComprehensive PlanandZoning/Subdivision
regulations.  

Assists inproviding information regarding zoning regulations, standards, policies and
procedures.  Thisposition mayprovide theabove toresidents, businesses,  
developers, contractors, architects, citystaffandothers.  

Accepts planning, zoning, andsubdivision applications, processes allfeesand
applications materials, creates electronic andphysical filefolders, updates the

November 2023 3



website withnewapplication information, updates/maintains thelogofplanning
applications, andmaintains permanent storage ofplanning applications/files (paper
andelectronic).    

Creates mailing listsandmapsfornewapplications incompliance withapplicable
statestatutes andlocalordinances regarding publication ofsuchnotices and
additional notices asdirected.  Assists inpreparation oflegalnotices forpublication
intheofficial newspaper.  Assembles andsendsallmailed notices inthecode
required timeframe.  

Collects, assembles, anddistributes agendas andpackets forPlanning Commission
inbothhardcopyandelectronic forms.  Maintain permanent storage ofagendas and
packets.  Update thewebsite with thisinformation asneeded.  

Updates handouts andapplications forms forplanning, zoning andbuilding division.   
Updates thewebsite withupdated handouts andforms.  

Assists Planning Director, Planning Technician andBuilding Official inconducting
surveys ofothercities’ codesandrequirements.    

Assists inmaintaining permanent storageofbuilding permits.  

Prepares andmailsexpiration notices forrental licenses andfarmanimal permits.   
Answers questions ontheapplication process.  

Receives complaints ofrentalhousing, planning andothercodeviolations, create
files, andarrange forinvestigations asmaybeappropriate.    

Completes mailings fordeermanagement program.    

Conducts special studies andassistswith theprocessing ofdatarequests.  

Maintains correspondence files.  

Performs otherdutiesasapparent orassigned.  

EDUCATION/EXPERIENCE

Minimum Qualifications:  Highschool diploma orGED; twoyearsoffice, clerical and
customer service experience.  Experience withmulti-linetelephone system andavariety of
office equipment. Training inMicrosoft Office Products (Word, Excel, Outlook, PowerPoint).    

DESIRED QUALIFICATIONS
Preferred Qualifications include aTwo-YearAssociate’sDegree inarelated field.    

November 2023 4



OTHER KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS ANDABILITIES

Working knowledge ofmunicipal policies, operation, procedures andfunctions.  
Knowledge ofcorrect English language usage, including grammar andspelling; visual
proofreading skills.    
Ability toreadandinterpret documents andprocedure manuals.    
Utilizes effective communication skillsbothverbally andinwriting withelected
officials, supervisors, otheremployees andthegeneral public.    
Ability toprepare routine reports andcorrespondence.     
Ability tofileandmaintain filesalphabetically andnumerically, andmaintain
organized, complete andaccurate records.    
Experience withcomputer operations andproficient useofMicrosoft Office (Word,  
Excel, PowerPoint, Outlook) andcapable oflearning other software programs as
required.  
Ability tooperate various typesofofficeequipment including ten-key, copymachine,  
andscanner andothergeneral officeequipment.  
Capable ofmaking arithmetic computations usingwholenumbers, fractions and
decimals.  Ability tocompute rate, ratios andpercentages. Ability tohandle currency
andmakechange.  
Ability toprioritize andorganize workeffort tomeetdeadlines.  
Adheres tothevalues andbehaviors established foremployees oftheCityof
Shorewood.  

Incompliance withtheAmerican withDisabilities Actthefollowing represents thePhysical
andEnvironmental Demands: Theposition requires anequalamount oftimespent
standing, walking, andsitting.  Lifting, pushing/pulling, orcarrying objects weighing upto
thirty (30) pounds isrequired.  Climbing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, twisting,  
andbending aresometimes required.  Repetitive movements ofthehandsarerequired.  
Audio, visual, andverbal functions areessential functions toperforming thisposition.  
Specific visionabilities required bythis jobinclude closevision, colorvision, andtheability
toadjust focus. Mustadhere tosafety policies andactively promote safepractices inthe
workplace basedonannual safety training.   

November 2023 5



Item
2E

CityCouncilMeetingItem

Title/Subject:  Authorize Dispensing ofLiquoratArcticFeverEvent
MeetingDate: Monday, December 11, 2023
Preparedby:  BrendaPricco, DeputyCityClerk
Reviewedby:  SandieThone, CityClerk/HRDirector
Attachments:  Resolution

Background
Pursuant toMNStatute §340A.404, Subd.4forspecial provisions; sports, conventions, orcultural
facilities; community festivals. Thegoverning body ofamunicipality may authorize aholder ofa
retail on-sale intoxicating liquor license issued bythemunicipality orbyanadjacent municipality to
dispense intoxicating liquor atany convention, banquet, conference, meeting, orsocial affair
conducted onthe premises ofasports, convention, orcultural facility owned bythemunicipality or
instrumentality thereof having independent policy-making and appropriating authority and located
within themunicipality. The licensee must beengaged todispense intoxicating liquor atanevent
held byaperson ororganization permitted touse the premises and may dispense intoxicating
liquor only topersons attending theevent. The licensee maynotdispense intoxicating liquor toany
person attending orparticipating inayouth amateur athletic event, forpersons 18years ofageor
younger, held onthepremises.  

The following establishment isrequesting council consideration inauthorizing thedispensing of
liquor attheCity’sArctic Fever event being held onJanuary 19, 2024 from 5:30p.m. to7:30p.m.at
theShorewood Community and Event Center located at5735 Country Club Road, Shorewood, MN
55331:    

Donor Address License_______   
Excelsior Brewing 421 Third Street On-Sale Liquor License
Randy Howe, Vice President Excelsior, MN55331

Excelsior Brewing isdonating thebeer forsampling atthecommunity event, Arctic Fever, pursuant
totheEBC donation qualifications. The beer samples will beprovided atnocharge tothe public.    

Financial Considerations
None

Action Requested
Staff recommends thecitycouncil approve the Resolution Authorizing theDispensing ofLiquor by
Excelsior Brewing located at1421 Third Street inExcelsior for theArctic Fever event atShorewood
Community andEvent Center onJanuary 19, 2024.  Motion, second, and simple majority vote
required.    



CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTY OFHENNEPIN
STATE OFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION 23-123

ARESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THEDISPENSION OFINTOXICATING LIQUOR BYEXCELSIOR
BREWING ATTHEARCTIC FEVER EVENT

WHEREAS, pursuant toMNStatute §340A.404, Subd.4forspecial provisions suchascommunity
festivals, thegoverning bodyofamunicipality mayauthorize aholderofaretailon-sale
intoxicating liquor license issued bythemunicipality orbyanadjacent municipality todispense
intoxicating liquoratanyconvention, banquet, conference, meeting, orsocialaffair conducted
onthepremises ofacultural facility owned bythemunicipality thereof having independent
policy-making andappropriating authority andlocated within themunicipality.; and

WHEREAS, thefollowing establishment isrequesting council consideration inauthorizing the
dispensing ofliquorattheCity’sArcticFevereventbeingheldonJanuary 19, 2024from5:30
p.m. to7:30p.m.attheShorewood Community andEventCenter locatedat5735Country Club
Road, Shorewood, MN55331:    
Donor Address License_______   
Excelsior Brewing 421ThirdStreet On-SaleLiquor License
Randy Howe, VicePresident Excelsior, MN55331
and

WHEREAS, Excelsior Brewing isdonating thebeerforsampling atthecommunity event; Arctic
Fever, pursuant totheEBCdonation qualifications. Thebeersamples willbeprovided atno
charge tothepublic.    

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED bytheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood, toapprove
theresolution authorizing Excelsior Brewing todispense beerdonated tothefreecommunity
event, ArcticFever, putonbytheCityofShorewood.   

ADOPTED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL oftheCityofShorewood this11thdayofDecember 2023.  

Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, CityClerk



Item
2F

CityCouncilMeetingItem

Title/Subject:   Settingthe2024CityCouncilRegularMeetingSchedule
MeetingDate:  December 11, 2023
Preparedby:   SandieThone, CityClerk/HumanResources Director
Reviewedby:   MarcNevinski, CityAdministrator
Attachments:   2024RegularMeeting Schedule

Background
Pursuant toMinnesota State Statute §13D.04thecity council isrequired toprovide theregular
meeting schedule onfileatcityoffices. Inaddition, thestatute specifically requires that should an
alternate date bechosen foraregular meeting other than oneontheannual schedule, that thecity
follow thenotification requirements foraspecial meeting which includes posting thedate, time,  
place, and purpose ofthemeeting ontheofficial posting board atCity Hall.    

Regular citycouncil meetings which could include council work sessions prior totheregular meeting
for theyear 2024 willbeheld onthesecond and fourth Mondays ofeach month intheCity Council
Chambers located at5755 Country Club Road inShorewood, MN 55331. Should themeeting fallon
aholiday and analternate date ischosen for themeeting inlieuofopting outofthemeeting date,  
the process, and requirements forcalling aspecial meeting willbefollowed.   

Included isthe Schedule oftheproposed 2024 regular meetings. Three (3) regular meetings fall on
Federal Holidays: Memorial Day, Indigenous People’sDay (Legislation passed inthe2023 legislative
session re-designated Columbus Day as Indigenous People’sDay, although theFederal Government
recognize itasColumbus Day), and Veteran’sDay.    

Pursuant toMinnesota State Statute 645.44, Subdivision 5, nopublic business may betransacted
including public meetings onaFederal Holiday except foremergencies. Please note in theschedule
that we have moved theregularly scheduled citycouncil meetings that land onaFederal Holiday to
the following Tuesday ashasbeen the practice for thepast six years. The Truth-In-Taxation meeting
willbeheld onthesecond Monday inDecember along with ourregularly scheduled citycouncil

rdmeeting onthat date. The second meeting inDecember falls onDecember 23, close tothe
Christmas holiday and hasbeen cancelled.   

ActionRequested
Staffrecommends thecitycouncilapprovetheResolution Settingthe2024RegularCityCouncil
MeetingSchedule. Motion, secondandsimplemajorityvoterequired.   

Page1



2024CityofShorewood
CityCouncilRegularMeetingSchedule

Monday, January8 Monday, January22

Monday, February12 Monday, February26

Monday, March11 Monday, March25

Monday, April8 Monday, April22

Monday, May13    * Tuesday, May28

Monday, June10 Monday, June24

Monday, July8 Monday, July22

Monday, August12 Monday, August26

Monday, September9 Monday, September23

Tuesday, October15 Monday, October28

Tuesday, November12 Monday, November25

ndMonday, December9 (TIT)  2 DecemberMeetingCancelled

changedfromMondaytoTuesdaytoaccommodateFederalHoliday



CityCouncilMeetingItem

Title/Subject:   AdoptWinterOperations Policy
ItemMeetingDate:  December 11, 2023
2GPreparedby:   MattMorreim, PublicWorksDirector

Reviewedby:   MarcNevinski, CityAdministrator
Attachments:   WinterOperations Policy

Resolution

Background:  
Itisimportant toensurethattheCityisprepared toeffectively managesnowandiceevents.  
Thepublicdependsupontheuseofstreetsandhighwaysduringalltypesofweather-related
events. Thepublicalsoutilizespublicbuildings, sidewalks, andtrailsduringandafterwinter
events.   

Toassiststaff, residentsandvisitors, CitystaffdevelopedaWinterOperations Policy (attached),  
thatisdesigned to:  

Improvethesafetyandefficiencyofsnowandiceremoval.  
Reduceenvironmental impactsofwinteroperations.  
Minimizedisruptions totrafficandbusiness.  
Reducepropertydamage, personal injuriesandclaimstothecityassociatedwithwinter
relatedevents.  

Theproposedpolicyincludes:  
Responsibility ofallparties (cityandpublic) regardingwinterweatherandoperations.  
Definesnowandicemanagement prioritiesacrosspublicfacilities.  
Defineanddelegateauthority forwinteroperationdecisionsandactivities including
trainingandsnowandiceprotocols.  
Defineresponsibility toprivatestreetsandjurisdictional roads.  
Defineandpublishmaintenance routestobemoreefficientwithsnowandice
maintenance activities.  

Staff recommends theadoptionofthenewWinterOperations Policytoensure thattheCity
continues tobeprepared tomanagesnowandiceeventsandmaintainasafeandlivable
environment forallresidents effectively andefficiently.  

FinancialorBudgetConsiderations:    
Currently therearenofinancialorbudget impactstoadopting thenewpolicy.  

ActionRequested:   
Motiontoapprovetheattachedresolution adopting theCity’sWinterOperations Policy.  A
simplemajorityvoteisrequired.   

Page1





















































CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION23-124

ARESOLUTIONFORADOPTINGWINTEROPERATIONPOLICY

WHEREAS, theCityofShorewood iscommitted toensuring thesafetyandwell-being
ofitsresidents during thewinter season; and

WHEREAS, theCityofShorewood needsawinter operations policy toadequately meet
theneedsofourcommunity; and

WHEREAS, Citystaffhasconducted acomprehensive reviewofbestpractices and
current practices anddeveloped anewwinter operations policydesigned toimprove the
safetyandefficiency ofsnowandiceremoval, minimize disruptions totrafficand
business, andreduce theenvironmental impactofwinter operations.  

NOWTHEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED: bytheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood
hereby approve theresolution toadopt theWinter Operations Policy.  

thADOPTED BYTHE CITY COUNCIL OFTHE CITY OF SHOREWOOD this11 dayof
December 2023.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor
Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk



Item
2H

CityCouncilMeetingItem

Title/Subject:   Approve Seasonal WarmingHouseAttendant Hires
MeetingDate:  December 11, 2023
Preparedby:   SandieThone, CityClerk/HumanResources Director
Reviewedby:  JanelleCrossfield/ParkandRecreation Director

MarcNevinski, CityAdministrator
Attachments:   None

Background
Thecitymost recently recruited candidates forSeasonal Warming House Attendant positions for
thewinter skating season atCathcart andManor parks. Thanks inpart totheCouncil approving our
new NEOGOV Insight recruiting software, theCity received 133 hitsontheposition which was

thposted onOctober 27, 2023. The posting was closed onMonday, November 27, after receiving six
very good applicants for theposition, anumber thatwehave not met inmany years.    Interviews
were held with five candidates for theseasonal positions onMonday, November 27and Monday,  
December 4, 2023. Asaresult ofthose interviews, staff isrecommending conditional approval upon
receiving successful background checks, for the following:  

Gage Jackson Gavin Whiteside
Noah Rajala Braeden Pruitt
Sidney Whiteside

These employees, ifapproved, willwork inthecapacity asseasonal Warming House Attendants
working schedules of12-15hours perweek andnot toexceed 20hours perweek. The position is
classified asaseasonal position onGrade 1ofthecity’scompensation schedule with arange of
13.23to $19.84perhour. The position isnon-exempt and does notqualify forbenefits except for

earned safe and sick time (ESST) beginning January 1, 2024. The above candidates were
conditionally offered astarting wage of $15.43perhour which isStep Conthecompensation
schedule.   

Financial Considerations
These positions are included inthe2024 budget under thePark and Recreation personnel budget.   

Action Requested
Staff recommend thecitycouncil approve the Seasonal Warming House Attendant hires as
presented and upon receiving successful background investigations. Motion, second and simple
majority vote required.   

Page1



CityCouncil Meeting Item

Title/Subject:   Approve Quotes AVEquipment forSCEC
ItemMeeting Date:  December 11, 2023

Prepared by:   Janelle Crossfield, ParksandRecreation Director 2I
Reviewed by:   MarcNevinski, CityAdministrator
Attachments:   Updated Quote forMobile AVCart, Projector andScreen

Background
CityCouncil reviewed aquote foramobile AVcart, projector andscreen attheNovember 27,  
2023meeting. Council discussed thattheShorewood Community andEventCenter couldbetter
meet theneedsofrenters andusersofthefacilitywith thepurchases ofproposed equipment.  
However, therewasconcern about thepriceoftwoitems, thedisplay andtherallybar, aswell
asaconversation regarding theneedforhiringouttheassembly, install, testing andtraining.  
Council directed staff todetermine iflowerpricing couldbeidentified andoffered assistance in
assembly, installation, andtraining.   

Equipment Pricing
Staff researched thepricing andavailability oftherallybaranddisplay. Thedisplay wasfound
atapriceof $1733andasaleprice $1595attwodifferent stores compared totheoriginally
quoted priceof $1878.05. Ifapproved staffwillpurchase fromoneofthesetwostores,  
whichever hasthelowerpriceatthetimeofpurchase.   

Therallybarwasoriginally quoted for $3600, staffwasable tofindthesameproduct onsale
through anonline vendor for $3370atthetimeofresearch withtwoleft instock. Duetothe
timethatpasses between research, potential approval fromCityCouncil andthetimeof
purchase staffwasnotconfident intheavailability oftherallybarorsalepriceremaining. Staff
requested thevendor come down inpriceandtheyagreed tolower theirpriceto $3496, a
savings of $104.  

Theoriginal quote forthese twoitems totaled $5478.05. Ifapproved anddepending onwhich
storehasthelowerpriceforthedisplay atthetimeofpurchase, thetotal savings isexpected to
rangebetween $249and $387.  Given variability intheretailmarket, staff request Council
authorize thepurchase ofadisplay andrallybar inanamount nottoexceed theoriginal quote
of $5478, plusanytaxorfees.  



Professional ServicesandAdministrative Fees
Bycompleting theassembly, installation, testingandtraininginhousetheretheprofessional
servicesandadministrative feeswereremoved resulting inasavingsof $3546.24.   

MobileAVCartwithoutDisplay (purchased separately), ProjectorandScreen

Total: 7328.57

BenefitofUpdatedAVEquipment
The2023Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) forSCEChasanamountof $10,000forpaintingand
10,000foraremodeloftheActivityRoom. Afterprioritizingbuildingneeds, staffrecommends

foregoing theseprojectsandinsteadinvesting inA/Vequipment tobettersuittheneedsof
buildingusers.    

UsageoftheShorewood Community andEventCenterforrentals, educational programsand
community meetings havebeenlimitedbytheexistingAVequipment. Staffworkedwiththree
differentvendorstodiscusssolutions tothischallenge. Optionsforupgrading eachindividual
roomwereinitially reviewed. However, intalksofbudget, thefrequencyofmultiple rooms
needingspecialAVatthesametimeandthenumberofattendees fortheaverage rental
resulted inexploring theoptionofamobileAVcart. ThisAVcartcouldbeutilizedinanyroom,  
evenwiththeroomsdividedandbothsidesbeingoccupied andfeaturesa75” displayaswell
asteleconferencing capabilities. ThismobileAVcartsolutionwouldbeavailable torenterswith
amodestadditional fee.   

ThemobileAVcartincludesaLCD, 75” 4K/UHDdisplay, aconferencing webcam, rallybarall-in- 
onevideobar, mountingbracket, electricheightadjustable cart (togetthroughdoorways) and
ashelfforsettingyourlaptoporotherdeviceon.    

WhilethemobileAVcartwillbeagreatsolutionforthemajority therearestilltimeswhen
usersofthefullbanquet roomorfullactivityroomcouldbenefit fromalargerscreenand
brighterprojector. Whentheroomisbeingusedforpresentations andeducational purposes
thetextonthescreenissmallandchallenging toread. Additionally, thereislightbleedthrough
theshades thattheprojector isnotbrightenoughtocompensate for, plusminimal lightsare
keptonforattendees tobeabletosee, takenotes, movearoundtheroom, etc. Theexisting
projector is280lumens, amid-sizeroomdaytimeuserecommendation is5000lumens. Renters
haveexpressed disappointment inthequalityofourprojectorandscreenwhenreserving the



roomforeducational conferences andseminars. Theyalsohadahardtimehearing the
presenters, affordable solutions tothebanquet roomsound system arebeing researched and
willbepresented infuturebudget/long-termplanning meetings.   

Staff recommends thepurchase ofthemobile AVcart, a75” commercial display, a77x120”  
portable screenanda5500Lumen projector fortheShorewood Community andEventCenter.  
Thepurchase ofthese items willhelptoattract andkeepmorerentals andprovide recurring
renters withastandard levelofservice that iscommon withcommunity center rentals.   

Financial orBudget Considerations
The2023Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) forSCEChasanamount of $10,000forpainting and
10,000foraremodel oftheActivity Room.  Afterprioritizing building needs, staffrecommends

foregoing theseprojects andinstead investing inA/Vequipment tobetter suittheneedsof
building users.    

Action Requested:   
Motion toapprove thereallocation of2023CIPfundforthepurchase of1) amobileAVcartand
a75” commercial display inanamount nottoexceed $5478, plustaxesorfees, and2) a
projector andscreen intheamount of $7328.57, plustaxesorfees.  Simple majority vote
required.   

















































































































































CITYOFSHOREWOOD

RESOLUTION NO. 23-125

ARESOLUTION ADOPTING THE2024GENERAL FUND OPERATING BUDGET
ANDAPPROVING THEPROPERTY TAXLEVY COLLECTIBLE IN2024

WHEREAS, the2024Budget andproperty taxleviescollectible in2024forthe
CityofShorewood havebeenprepared andreviewed bytheCityCouncil; and,  

WHEREAS, thebudget hasbeenmodified bytheCityCouncil tomeetservice delivery
goals; and,  

WHEREAS, theCityCouncil heldaTruth-in-Taxation public meeting onDecember 11,  
2023, toreceive public comment regarding theadoption ofsuchbudgets andproperty tax
levies;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOFSHOREWOOD
ASFOLLOWS:  

1. Thatabudget of $6,485,291isadopted topayfor2024General Fundoperations.   

2. Thatthesumof $7,115,274 islevied for2023, collectible in2024, upon taxable
property intheCityofShorewood. Individual fundproperty taxlevies areasfollows:  

General Fund       $ 5,743,012
DebtService Funds:  

2020A G.O. Street Reconstruction Bonds  $ 228,492
2021A G.O. Street Reconstruction Bonds  $ 310,023
2022A G.O. Street Reconstruction Bonds  $ 289,416
2023A G.O. Street Reconstruction Bonds  $ 160,331

Capital Project Funds:  
Equipment Replacement    $ 128,000
Street Improvements     $ 128,000
Park Improvements     $ 128,000

7,115,274

3. That theCityClerk ishereby instructed totransmit acertified copyofthis
resolution totheCounty Auditor ofHennepin County, Minnesota.  



thADOPTED BYTHE CITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOFSHOREWOOD this11 dayofDecember,  
2023.     

ATTEST:       Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, CityClerk



CITYOFSHOREWOOD

RESOLUTION NO. 23-126

ADOPTING THE2024SHOREWOOD COMMUNITY & EVENT CENTER BUDGET AND2024
ENTERPRISE FUNDBUDGETS

WHEREAS, Citystaffhavepresented thepreliminary 2024 budgets atmeetings through
December, 2023; and

WHEREAS, theCityCouncil hasreviewed thebudgets andmademodifications toeach that
reflect desired community service levels; and

WHEREAS, thesebudgets represent areasonable estimate ofwhatneeds tobespent to
provide thedesired service level;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOFSHOREWOOD
ASFOLLOWS:  

1. TheShorewood Community & EventCenterbudget ishereby adopted aspresented.  
2. TheWater, Sewer, Storm Water, andRecycling budgets arehereby adopted as

presented.   

ADOPTED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOFSHOREWOOD this11thdayofDecember, 2023.  

ATTEST:       Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, CityClerk



CITYOFSHOREWOOD

RESOLUTION NO. 23-127

ADOPTING THE2024-2033CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN,   
AND2024CAPITAL PROJECT FUND BUDGETS

WHEREAS, Citystaffhavepresented the2024-2033preliminary Capital Improvement Plan
CIP) and2024capital project fundbudgets atmeetings through December, 2023; and

WHEREAS, theCityCouncil hasreviewed theCIPandbudgets andmademodifications to
eachthat reflect desired community service levels; and

WHEREAS, thesebudgets represent areasonable estimate ofwhatneeds tobespent to
provide thedesired service level;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOFSHOREWOOD
ASFOLLOWS:  

1. The2024-2033Capital Improvement Planishereby adopted aspresented withthis
adoption subject toPlanning Commission review anddetermination ofcompliance
withtheComprehensive Plan.    

2. ThePark Improvement, Equipment Replacement, Street Reconstruction, MSA, Trail
Construction, andCommunity Infrastructure budgets arehereby adopted as
presented.   

ADOPTED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOFSHOREWOOD this11thdayofDecember, 2023.  

ATTEST:       Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, CityClerk



CityCouncilMeetingItem

Title/Subject:   Employee ServiceRecognition Item
MeetingDate:  December 11, 2023 4B
Preparedby:   MarcNevinski, CityAdministrator

Background
Withgreatappreciation, theCityrecognizesemployees whohavehitcertainmilestones intheir
employment withtheCity.  Theseanniversaries ofemployment arespecial tobothemployees
andtheCityalike, astheyareatestimony totheircommitment tothecommunity andit’s
residents overtheyears.    

Theemployees beingrecognized thisyear:  

JoeRigdon, FinanceDirector - 5yearsofservice
WadeWoodward, BuildingOfficial - 5yearsofservice
AndyEslinger, Streets Inspector - 5yearsofservice
MichelleNguyen – SeniorAccountant - 20yearsofservice

Withtheirindividualeffortsandachievements, theymakeitpossible forthecitytoprovide
exceptional servicetothecommunity.  Theirhardworkanddedication iscommendable and
doesnotgounnoticed.  Welookforwardtotheirongoingcontributions andabrightand
successful futuretogether.  

TheShorewood CityCouncil recognizes andexpresses appreciation toJoeRigdon, Wade
Woodward, AndyEslinger, andMichelleNguyen forbeingvaluedmembers oftheteam, their
significant contributions overtheyearsandtheirdedication tothecityandthecommunity!    

AShorewood YetiRambler TumblerwithMagslider Lidwillbeawardedforthecommemorative
occasion toeachoftheemployees engravedwiththeirnamesandyearsofservice.  Inaddition,  
eachemployee receivesamonetary rewardbasedonyearsofservice.  

BudgetConsiderations
Employee recognition awardsareincluded intheCity’sannualbudgetandpublicpurpose
expenditure policy.  

ActionRequested
Noformalactionisrequired.   



  City Council Meeting Item 

Title/Subject:    Placing the 2040 Comprehensive Plan into Effect  
Meeting Date:  December 11, 2024 
Prepared by:   Marie Darling, Planning Director 
Attachments:   Notice of Metropolitan Council Action 

Comprehensive Plan (available at this link:  Welcome to Shorewood, MN ) 
   Resolution 
 
Background 
In June of 2019, the City Council adopted the City’s 2040 Comprehensive Plan and authorized staff 
to submit the Comprehensive Plan to the Metropolitan Council for their review.  After receiving an 
incomplete letter from the Metropolitan Council, the City of Shorewood made amendments to the 
Comprehensive Plan (approved November 8, 2021) and resubmitted to the Metropolitan Council.   
 
Staff received additional direction from the Metropolitan Council over the course of two years to 
add additional information regarding intercommunity sewer services agreements.  Additionally, we 
submitted all copies of agreements that existed at that time.  We resubmitted the Comprehensive 
Plan formally on September 13, 2023 and it was accepted as complete.  The Metropolitan Council 
formally completed their review on October 25, 2023.   
 
Once the Metropolitan Council completes their review, the City is required to formally put its 
Comprehensive Plan into effect and send the final copy to the Metropolitan Council.  Attached is 
the final copy of the Comprehensive Plan.  The only change between this plan and the plan 
reviewed by the Metropolitan Council is the addition of one intercommunity utility agreement (for 
Lake Park Villas) as they require copies of all such agreements approved after their review was 
completed.   
 
In addition to the link above, the Comprehensive Plan can be found on the City’s webpage using the 
following path:   Click on Planning and Building tab, then choose Comprehensive Plan and click on 
Comprehensive Plan   
 
Or the URL: 
https://ci.shorewood.mn.us/government/city_departments/inspections/comprehensive_plan.php 
 
Financial Considerations:   
The action of putting the Comprehensive Plan into effect has little impact on the Budget.  Amending 
the other official controls (zoning and subdivision regulations and the zoning map) to implement 
the Plan will be completed over the next nine months.  Staff will likely be preparing the changes to 
the zoning regulations and map internally. 
 
Action Requested:   
Motion to adopt the attached resolution that places the Shorewood 2040 Comprehensive Plan into 
effect.   Approval of this item requires a 4/5 majority of the City Council.   

Item 
6B 

https://ci.shorewood.mn.us/government/city_departments/inspections/comprehensive_plan.php






































CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTY OFHENNEPIN
STATE OFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION 23-128

ARESOLUTION PLACING THE2040SHOREWOOD COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE
INTO EFFECT

WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes section 473.864requires each localgovernmental unittoreview
and, ifnecessary, amend itsentire comprehensive plananditsfiscal devices andofficial controls
atleastonceeverytenyears toensure itscomprehensive planconforms tometropolitan
system plansandensure itsfiscaldevices andofficial controls donotconflict withthe
comprehensive planorpermit activities thatconflict withmetropolitan system plans; and

WHEREAS, theCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood (the “City”) authorized thereviewand
update ofthecomprehensive plan; and

WHEREAS, theShorewood 2040Comprehensive Plan (the “Plan”) isaplanning tool intended to
guide thefuturegrowthanddevelopment oftheCityofamanner thatconforms with
metropolitan system plansandcomplies withtheMetropolitan LandPlanning Actandother
applicable planning statutes; and

WHEREAS, theproposed Planreflects acommunity planning process involving elected officials,  
appointed officials, citystaff, community organizations, thepublicatlarge, developers, and
otherstakeholders; and

WHEREAS, pursuant toMinnesota Statutes section 473.858, theproposed Planwassubmitted
toadjacent governmental agencies andaffected special districts andschooldistricts forreview
andcomment onNovember 20, 2018; and

WHEREAS, theCityconsidered theproposed Planandallpublic comments, heldadulynotice
public hearing, andapproved theplanforsubmission totheMetropolitan Council onJune10,  
2019; and

WHEREAS, atitsregular meeting onOctober 25, 2023, theMetropolitan Council completed its
review oftheproposed 2040Comprehensive PlanandfoundthatthePlanmeets the
requirements oftheMetropolitan LandPlanning Act; conforms tothemetropolitan system
plans fortransportation, water resources, andparks; isconsistent withtheThrive MSP2040
documents andpolicies; andiscompatible withtheplansofadjacent jurisdictions andaffected
special districts andschool districts; and



WHEREAS, thePlan includes allrevisions madeduring thereview process andresponds to
additional advisory comments thatarepartoftheMetropolitan Council’sactions authorizing
theCity toplace itsPlanintoeffect.  

NOW THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOFSHOREWOOD,  
MINNESOTA, ThePlanisadopted andiseffective asofthedateofthisresolution.    

BEITFURTHER RESOLVED, that, pursuant tosections 473.864and473.865oftheMetropolitan
LanePlanning Act, theCitywill: (1) review itsfiscalcontrols toensure theydonotconflictwith
thePlanorpermit activity inconflict withMetropolitan system plans; (2) ifnecessary, amend its
fiscaldevised andofficial controls toensure theydonotconflict withthePlanorpermit activity
inconflict withmetropolitan system plans; and (3) submit amendments tofiscaldevices or
official controls totheMetropolitan Council forinformation purposes.  

thAdopted bytheCityCouncil ofShorewood, Minnesota this11 dayofDecember, 2023.  

Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Attest:  

Sandie Thone, CityClerk































MarieDarling

From: ScottMorris <scott6513@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, November 29, 202311:36PM
To: Planning
Subject: Variance Application for3rdstallgarage - 24925 AmleeRoad

To: PlanningCommission,  

Wereceivedale?erfromtheCityofShorewood, concerning theNo?ceofPublicPlanningMee?ngandtheVariance
Applica?onforthe3rdstallgarage. We (24950AmleeRoad - SandyKelly-Morris & Sco? Morris) livedirectlyacrossthe
streetfrom24925AmleeRoad.   

Thepurposeofthisemailistomakeitclearthatweareinfavorofapproving this21.6setbackfromtheproperty. We
believethatthereisampleyardspacetoaccommodate thisaddi?on. Moreover, thesetbackisagooddistanceaway
fromthebothGlenandAmlee, allowingittobequiteunobtrusive.  

Sincerely,  
Sandy & Sco? Morris
24950AmleeRoad
Shorewood, MN55331

1







CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTY OFHENNEPIN
STATE OFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION 23-129

ARESOLUTION APPROVING AVARIANCE FORASETBACK FROM SIDE-YARD ABUTTING A
PUBLIC STREET FORPROPERTY LOCATED AT24925 AMLEE ROAD

WHEREAS, DavidHansenandShellyCurran  (the “Applicant”) proposed toconstructanaddition tothe
existinghomethatwouldbeabout25.7feetfromthesideproperty lineabutting theAmleeRoadright- 
of-waywhere35feetisrequiredonpropertyaddressed as24925AlmeeRoadandlegallydescribed as:  

Lot9, Block1AmleeAcres, Hennepin County, Minnesota (the “SubjectProperty”); and,  

WHEREAS, theApplicant’srequestwasreviewedbytheplanningstaff, whoserecommendation is
included inamemorandum fortheDecember5, 2023PlanningCommission meeting, acopyofwhichis
onfileatCityHall; and

WHEREAS, thePlanningCommission heldapublicmeetingonDecember5, 2023toreviewthe
application, theminutesofthemeetingsareonfileatCityHall; and

WHEREAS, theCityCouncilconsidered theapplication atitsregularmeetingonDecember 11, 2023, at
whichtimetheplanningstaffmemorandum andthePlanningCommission’srecommendations were
reviewedandpubliccomments werereviewed fromtheApplicant, staffandpublic.  

NOWTHEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOFSHOREWOOD, MINNESOTA AS
FOLLOWS:  

FINDINGS OFFACT

1. TheSubjectProperty islocated intheR-1Czoningdistrict, whichrequiresallbuildings tobeset
back35feetfromside-yardproperty linesabuttingpublicrights-of-way.  

2. Section1201.05ofthezoningregulations providesthatthepurposeofavariance istoallowa
processtodeviatefromthestrictprovisionofthezoningregulations whentherearepractical
difficulties, andtheactionistheminimumtoalleviate thepracticaldifficulties.  

4. Section1201.05ofthezoningregulations includes criteriaformakingtheabovedetermination.    

5. TheApplicant’sproposal isidentifiedontheapplication materialsandplanssubmittedon
November9and20, 2023 (the “Plans”).  



CONCLUSIONS

A. Basedupontheforegoing, andtherecordsreferenced herein, theCityCouncil herebyapproves
theApplicant'srequesttoconstructanadditionwithaside-yardabuttingapublicstreetsetbackof
about25.7feetwhere35feetisrequiredconsistent withthePlans.  

B. TheCityCouncil findsthevariancerequest foragarageadditionanditsresultingconstruction
anduse, isconsistent withtheintentofthecomprehensive planandinharmonywiththegeneral
purposesandintentofthezoningregulations.    

C. TheCityCouncil findsthattherequestspecifically demonstrates practicaldifficulties basedon
thereasonable proposed useoftheSubjectProperty, theuniquecircumstances relatedtotheoriginal
placementofthehomeonthelotpriortotheapplication ofmodernzoningregulations, and
preservation oftheessential characteroftheareathatwouldbepreserved duetotheplacementofthe
hometothesouthatabout26.25feetfromtheright-of-wayandthelocationofthetwohomesatthe
endoftheblock.     

D. TheCityCouncil findsthattheimprovements proposedarenotsolelybasedoneconomic
considerations, buttoenhancethelivabilityofthehome.  

E. TheCityCouncil findsthattheadditionwouldnotimpairanadequate supplyoflightandairto
anadjacentproperty, increasetheriskoffireorincreasetheimpactonadjacentstreets.    

F. TheCityCouncil findsthatthehomewouldnotbedetrimental tothepublicwelfarenorwouldit
beinjurioustoother landsorimprovements intheneighborhood.    

G. Thevariance istheminimum variancenecessary toaddressoralleviate thepracticaldifficulties.    

H. Thevarianceapprovalshallbesubjecttothecondition thattheapplicantshallacquireall
necessary permitsconsistent withCityCode, priortobeginning construction onthepropertyandthe
following:   

1. Theapplicants shallproviderevisedplansindicating theaddition istwofeetnarrower than
theiroriginal request.  

I. Thevarianceshallexpireoneyearafterapprovalunlesstheapplicanthascompleted the
project, oranextensionhasbeenrequested inaccordancewithSection1201.05Subd. 3ofCityCode.  

J. TheCityClerkisherebyauthorized anddirectedtoprovideacertifiedcopyofthisresolution for
filingwiththeHennepin CountyRecorderorRegistrarofTitles.  



THAdoptedbytheCityCouncilofShorewood, Minnesota this11 dayofDecember, 2024.  

Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Attest:  

Sandie Thone, CityClerk



CouncilUpdate

Title/Subject:   Pavement Management Update 7AMeetingDate:  December 11, 2023
Preparedby:   MattMorreim, PublicWorksDirector
Reviewedby:   MarcNevinski, CityAdministrator
Attachments:  AveragePavementCondition Ratings

Thisupdate istoupdate theCityCouncil regarding thenewpavement condition analysis
program, VaisalaRoadAI, thatwaspurchasedandimplemented in2023.   

VaisalaRoadAI addresses manychallenges withroadanalysisby:  
Utilizingartificial intelligence (AI): Thesoftwareanalyzeshigh-resolution images froma
vehicleequippedwithacamera. Thisdataisthenprocessed byAIalgorithms to
generatedetailed, objectiveassessments ofpavement condition, including:  

o Crackdetectionandclassification (severity, type, etc.)  
o Surfacetextureanalysis
o Overallpavement score

Assetdetectionoftrafficsigns, linemarkings, surfacemarkings, etc.  
Providing interactive datavisualization: Thesoftwarepresentspavement datainuser- 
friendlydashboards andmaps, allowingforclearidentification ofproblemareasand
prioritization ofrepairs.  
Pavement conditiondatatoexport tofutureroadassetmanagement system.  

TheRoadAIprogram hasnumerous benefits, including:  
Improved accuracyandobjectivity: AI-poweredassessments eliminatehumanbiasand
provideamorepreciseunderstanding ofpavement health.  
Enhanced efficiency: Data-drivendecision-makingoptimizesresource
allocation, hopefully leadingtofewerunnecessary repairsandlongerpavement
lifespans.  
Reducedcosts: Proactive maintenance canpreventcostly infrastructure failuresand
extendthetimebetweenmajorresurfacing projects.  
Increased safety: Earlydetectionofpavement issuesallowsfortimelyrepairs, improving
roadsafetyformotorists, cyclists, andpedestrians.  

ThenextstepsforutilizingthedatafromtheRoadAIprogramare:  
Integratedataintofutureassetmanagement system.  
Utilizedatatoprovidefuturecapitalplanningandfunding scenarios.   
Pavement reporttodocument andguidefutureroadinfrastructure projects
Continue toperformRoadAIevaluations. Anticipate spring, summerandfallevaluations.  

WebelievethattheRoadAIalongwiththeotherstepsidentified havethepotential toimprove
ourcity'sinfrastructure management. Weareconfident thatitwillleadtosignificant
improvements inefficiency, costsavings, andpublicsafety.  





















































CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

ORDINANCE603
ANORDINANCETITLED

UTILITYSERVICEANDRECYCLINGCHARGES”   

THECITYCOUNCILOFTHECITYOFSHOREWOOD, MINNESOTA, ORDAINSAS
FOLLOWS:  

Section 1.  Section 1301.02oftheShorewood CodeofOrdinances ishereby amended
asfollows:   

CITYOFSHOREWOOD
UTILITYSERVICEANDRECYCLINGCHARGES

Section 1. Change theWater, Sanitary Sewer, Stormwater Management UtilityRates
andResidential Recycling rateasfollows:  

WaterFund:  

CATEGORIES CURRENT RATES PROPOSED RATES
First5,000gallons $ 26.86 $ 29.55
Per/1,000galfrom5,001to $  4.54 $   4.99
50,000
Per/1,000galabove50,000 $  6.52 $   7.17
Water Service – lowincome $ 23.06 $ 25.37

SanitarySewerFund:  

CATEGORY CURRENT RATES PROPOSED RATES
Residential $ 112.36/qtr.  $74.90/qtr. low $ 122.47/qtr.  $81.64/qtr. low

income income
Commercial $ 12.70base, $112.36/qtr. feefor $ 13.84base, $122.47/qtr. fee

1-28,500gallons, $2.92/1,000 for1-28,500gallons,  
gallons inexcess of28,500 $ 3.18/1,000gallons inexcess
gallons perqtr. of28,500gallons perqtr.  

StormwaterManagementFund:  

Current BasicSystem Rate:  $37.29 $ 26.11/qtr: lotslessthan10,000sq. ft
37.29/qtr: lots10,000 – 50,000sq. ft.  
48.54/qtr: lots50,000plussq. ft.  

Proposed BasicSystem Rate:  $37.29 $ 28.20/qtr: lotslessthan10,000sq. ft.  
40.27/qtr: lots10,000 – 50,000sq. ft.  
52.42/qtr: lots50,000plussq. ft.  



RecyclingFund:    

CATEGORY CURRENT RATE PROPOSED RATE
Residential $ 14.00/quarter/household $ 16.00/quarter/household

Section 2. Thisordinance isineffect withtheApril2024billinganduponpublication.  

ADOPTEDBYTHECITYCOUNCILoftheCityofShorewood, Minnesota this11th day
ofDecember, 2023.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor

SandieThone, CityClerk



Item
8B

CityCouncilMeetingItem

Title/Subject:   ZoningandLandUseFeeOrdinance
MeetingDate:  December 11, 2023
Preparedby:   MarieDarling, PlanningDirector
Attachments:   PlanningCommission memofromNovember 21, 2023meeting

Minutes fromtheNovember 21, 2023PlanningCommission meeting
Ordinance 602
Resolution forSummary Publication

Background
Seeattachedmemorandum forbackground.  AttheirNovember 21, 2023meeting, thePlanning
Commission heldapublichearingandvotedunanimously torecommend adoptionofthe
proposed feeincreasesasproposedintheattachedordinance withnochanges.  Their
discussion issummarized intheminutes.  Noonefromthepublicrequested tospeak.    

PublicNotice
NoticeofthePlanningCommission publichearingwaspublished inbothofficialnewspapers.  In
conformance withStateStatute, noticeofCityCouncilconsideration oftheamendment was
alsopostedatCityHall, onthewebsite, andincluded intheemailnotification forgeneralcity
information andnotices.    

NextStepsandTimelines
Onceadopted, thesummary willbepublished intheofficialnewspaper.  Oncepublished, the
ordinance becomeseffective.  Allapplications receivedpriortopublication intheofficial
newspaper wouldbereviewed undertheexistingstandards.  

FinancialConsiderations
Thefeeincreasesareproposedtocoveradditional expenses relatedtoprocessing the
applications, includingpostage, administrative staff time, newnoticesignage, etc.  Theincrease
intheescrowamountsareproposed tocoverthecostofhavingthecity’sconsultants
engineers, planners, andattorney) reviewtheapplications.   

ActionRequested
StaffandthePlanningCommission recommend approvaloftheattachedordinance and
resolution forsummarypublication.  Staffprovide thefollowing draftmotions:  

1. Movetoapproveanordinanceamending CityCodesection1301.03relatedtolanduse
fees; sections1201.04, 1201.05, and1201.25 (zoningregulations), andsections1202.03
and1202.09ofthesubdivision regulations.    



2. Movetoapprove aresolution adopting asummary publication ordinance andthetextof
thesummary pursuant toMNStatute 331A.01whichwould inform thepublicofthe
intentandeffectoftheordinance without publishing theentire ordinance.    

Adoption oftheabove ordinance requires amajority oftheentireCityCouncil. Adoption ofa
resolution forsummary publication requires a4/5thsmajority oftheCityCouncil.    



















CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTY OFHENNEPIN
STATE OFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION 23-130

ARESOLUTION APPROVING THESUMMARY PUBLICATION FOR ORDINANCE 602
AMENDMENTS TOSHOREWOOD CITYCODE, CHAPTER 1301.03 (LAND USEFEES)  

WHEREAS, atadulycalled meeting onDecember 11, 2023, theCityCouncil oftheCityof
Shorewood adopted Ordinance No. 602entitled “ANORDINANCE APROVING AMENDMENTS TO
SHOREWOOD CITYCODE CHAPTER 1301.03 (LAND USEFEES); and

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 602establishes theamounts forfeesandescrow deposits related to
zoning andsubdivision applications related todevelopment orredevelopment ofproperties
within theCityofShorewood; and
WHEREAS, thefeesandareproposed toincrease tocover thecostsofprocessing theapplications
andpaying forthereview oftheapplications bythecity’sconsultants.  
WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 602islengthy; and
WHEREAS, asauthorized byMinnesota Statutes, Section 412.191, subd. 4, theCityCouncil has
determined thatpublication ofthetitleandsummary oftheordinance willclearly inform the
publicoftheintentandeffectoftheordinance.  

NOW THEREFORE, ITISHEREBY RESOLVED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
SHOREWOOD:  

1. TheCityCouncil findsthattheabove titleandsummary ofOrdinance No. 602
clearly informs thepublicoftheintentandeffectoftheOrdinance.  

2. TheCityClerk isdirected topublish Ordinance No. 602bytitleandsummary,  
pursuant toMinnesota Statutes, Section 412.191, Subdivision 4.   

3. AfullcopyoftheOrdinance isavailable atShorewood CityHallduring regular office
hoursandonthecity’swebsite.  

thADOPTED bytheShorewood CityCouncil onthis11 dayofDecember, 2023.  

Jennifer Labadie, Mayor
Attest:  

Sandie Thone, CityClerk

225864v1



Item
8C

CityCouncilMeetingItem

Title/Subject:   2024MasterFeeSchedule
MeetingDate:  December 11, 2023
Preparedby:   SandieThone, CityClerk/HumanResources Director
Reviewedby:   MarcNevinski, CityAdministrator

JoeRigdon, FinanceDirector
Attachments:  Resolution 23-131Approving the2024MasterFeeSchedule

Background
Pursuant toMNStateLawmunicipalities shallsetforthfeestobereimbursed foradministrative
costsandexpenses associated withissuingpermits, licenses andprovidingothercityservices and
amenities.  Citiesshouldconsider threethingswhensetting fees: 1) Citiesshouldnotviewthe
feesasasignificant sourceofrevenue, ratherfeesmustapproximate thedirectandindirectcosts
associated withissuingthelicense, permitorserviceandwithpolicing, regulatingor
administering theserviceorlicensed activities; 2) Thefeeamountshouldsufficiently reimburse
thecityforalloftheexpenses relatedtothelicenseregulations orproviding theservicebut
shouldnotcoverotherunrelated expenses; 3) Feesshouldbesetbasedonthecity’sparticular
situationandnotbasedsolelyonwhatothercitieshavefoundreasonable.    

The followingsummaryofproposed feeswillbeincorporated intotheCity’s2024MasterFee
Scheduleonceapproveandwillbesenttoallemployees andcityofficialsandbeposted onour
websiteandatCityHallforthepublicuse.  Thefollowing aretheproposed feesandjustification
forsaidfeesasrecommended bystaffwhohavereviewed theirrespective departmental feesto
approximate thedirectandindirectcostsassociated withtheservicesprovided.    

Adiscussionofnew (inbold) andproposed increased feesfor2024isasfollows:    

SectionIII: UtilityRates
Ordinance 603, whichwaspresentedattheDecember 11, 2023, citycouncilmeetingfor
approval includes increasesasfollowsandwillbecomeeffectiveJanuary1, 2024:  



Quarterly Recycling feeshavenotincreased inover20yearsalthough thecity’scosttoprovide
thisservice continue togoupannually.  Thecitycontinues toexpand itsrecycling
communications, work, andeducation inthecommunity.    

In2019, theCityreported that itswater, sewer, andstormwater rateswould experience
annual increases.  Thecapital improvement plan, including thestreet reconstruction plan, will
require theCitytoincrease utility ratestocoverutility fundexpenses, including increasing
operating costs, capital outlays, anddebtservice payments onbonds.  Without rate increases,  
theutility fundbalances willbeinsufficient tocoverutility fundcosts.  Theutility rateanalysis
hasplanned annual increases overaten-yearperiod.  For thepast twoyears, theCityhas
considered changes inutility rates inthefourth quarter.  For2024, thatwould change tothe
firstquarter andwould include theeffective usage datesofJanuary 2024 through March 2024,  
billable approximately April1, 2024.  



Section IV: Miscellaneous FeesandCharges

CopyofComprehensive Plancostswereupdated toalignwithcitycopycostsof $1.00per
pageforcolorcopies.    
TheRental Housing Licensing Feewasincreased from $75to $150tocoverstaffing costs
ofprocessing applications andproviding inspections.   

Section V: ParkandRecreation
Ordinance 602, whichwaspresented attheDecember 11, 2023, citycouncil meeting for
approval includes increases asfollows andwillbecome effective uponsummary publication of
theordinance:  

Increase fororganized sportsof $10to $12/perparticipant persport perseason foruse
ofskating rinks, $15to $30fortheuseofthelights – bothreflect increase incostsof
lighting andstaffing.    
Community Gardens feeincrease from $30/$45to $35/$50forresidents/non-residents
respectively for increase toadministration/ staffing costs.     
Sporting fieldusefees increases include $125to $200fordamage deposits onallfields,  
unlighted football fieldusefrom $50/houror $210/dayto $75/hourto $550/day,  
Baseball fielddiamonds from $50/dayto $50/4hours, soccer fields from $150/dayto
Freeman Park $260/dayandManor Park $160/day.    
Picnic Pavilions increased forManor, Freeman, andSilverwood Parks from $25/$50to
45/$70forresidents/non-residents andforEddyStation/Badger Parks from $50/$75to
75/$100.    

Newfeeswereaddedasfollows: Tournament fees: $400forcityservices, $500for
parking overflow services, and $500forarefundable deposit.    

ParkandRecreation feeincreases haveremained mostly unchanged since2017but
administrative, maintenance, operating, equipment andsupply costshaveallincreased.   
These updated feesallow thecitytocover thecosts inthese areas.    

Section VI: Building andRightofWayFees

Anewfeewasaddedforbuilding permit planreview feesintheamount of65% of
building permit feesforpermits over $3000and32.5% forpermits between $1000- 
3000.    

Anewfeewasadded forAfter theFactbuilding permit applications thatwillbe
charged double iffailed toapply forapermit.    
ARightofWay/Easement Encroachment Agreement wasadded for $300feeanda
1000 escrow tocover costsofcityconsultants toreview theagreements.    

Residential roofing, siding, andwindow permits were increased from $125to $135to
coverstaffing costs toissuethepermits andprovide theinspections.    



Mechanical andplumbing permits were increased from $60/minimum to $80/minimum
tocoverstaffing costs toissuethepermits andprovide theinspections.    
Water heater, softener, purification system permits were increased from $60/eachto
80/eachtocoverstaffing coststoissuethepermits andprovide theinspections.    

Demolition permits were increased from $50to $135foraprincipal structure and $75
foranaccessory structure and “feewaived forconjunction withabuilding permitorfire
department burn language removed” tocoverstaffing coststoissuethepermits and
provide theinspections.    
TheVacation andEasement feewasincreased from $400to $500, anda $1,000escrow
feewasadded.    

Section VII: Zoning andLandUseFees
Ordinance 602, whichwaspresented attheDecember 11, 2023, citycouncil meeting for
approval includes increases asfollows andwillbecome effective uponpublication intheCity's
officialnewspaper.  

TheComprehensive PlanAmendment escrow amount wasincreased from $1,000to
3,000.  

TheConditional UsePermit (CUP) residential feewasincreased from $400to $500, and
a $500escrow wasadded, andthenon-residential feewasincreased to $600, andthe
escrow remains at $1,000.    
TheInterim UsePermit (IUP) residential feewasincreased from $400to $500, anda
500escrow wasadded, andthenon-residential feewasincreased to $600, andthe

escrow remains at $1,000.    
ThePlanned UnitDevelopment (PUD) Development Stageescrow wasincreased from
1,000to $2,000.    

TheSubdivision (minor) escrow wasincreased from $500to $2,000.    
TheSubdivision (preliminary plat) escrow for5orfewer lotswasincreased from $1,000
to $2,000.    
TheSubdivision (finalplat) escrow for5orfewer lotswas increased from $1,000to
2,000andforover5lotsfrom $2,000to $4,000.    

TheVariance residential feewasincreased from $400to $500, anda $500escrow was
added, andthenon-residential feewasincreased to $600, anda $500escrow added.      
Zoning permits were increased from $20to $25andfencepermits were included inthis
section.    
Parkdedication feeswere increased from $6,500to $7,500perdwelling unitand8% of
rawlandvalue.    
Extension ofplatapproval oramendment ofdevelopment agreement (new) addeda
500escrow fee.    

Allzoning andlandusefeesandescrows increases areduetoincreased costsandexpenses in
staffing, consulting costs, reviewing, andprocessing applications, submissions, andagreements.    



Financial Considerations
Thecity feesexpect tocover thecostofproviding theservices asdelineated above.      

Action Requested
Staff respectfully recommend thecitycouncil review theproposed master feeschedule
proposed feeincreases andapprove theattached resolution adopting the2024Master Fee
Schedule updates asproposed ormakechanges asdeemed appropriate.    
Motion, second andsimple majority voterequired.    



CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTY OFHENNEPIN
STATE OFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION 23-131

ARESOLUTION APPROVING THE2024CITY MASTER FEESCHEDULE

WHEREAS, TheCityofShorewood hasestablished feesforlicensing, permits, programs, andservices that
includebutarenotlimitedtobuilding, zoning, planning, business, community center, animal, parkand
recreation, rentals, solicitors, fireprevention, utility, franchise, administrative citations, andother
miscellaneous feesthatfurtherthehealth, safety, andwelfareofthecommunity atlarge.    

WHEREAS, Allfeesandchargesshallbefixedanddetermined bythecouncilandsetforthinthemaster
feeschedulewhichwillbeadoptedbyresolution anduniformly enforced.  Allfeeshavebeenreviewed
andauditedfortheireffectiveness andwererecommend inthefollowingcategories whichwillbe
included inthe2024CityMasterFeeSchedule:  

Section III: UtilityRates Ordinance 603includes increases toResidential Recycling fees,  
Water rates, Sanitary Sewer rates, andStormwater Management rates.    
Section IV: Miscellaneous FeesandCharges tocoverstaffingcostsofprocessing applications
andproviding inspections.   
Section V: ParkandRecreation tocoverstaffing, maintenance, operation, equipment
andsupplies forproviding theseservices andamenities tothecommunity.    
Section VI: Building andRightofWayFees tocoverstaffingcostsofprocessingapplications
andproviding inspections.   
Section VII: Zoning andLandUseFeesOrdinance 602includes increases tothecity’s
zoning andlandusefeesallowing forthecitytocover theincreasing costsofprocessing
andproviding theseservices tothepublic.     

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED bytheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood thattheCity
ofShorewood 2024Master FeeSchedule updates areapproved.   

ADOPTED bytheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood this11thdayofDecember 2023.  

ATTEST:       Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, CityClerk



Item
9A.1

CityCouncilMeetingItem

Title/Subject:   Communications Update: Website & SocialMediaStatsReport
MeetingDate:  Monday, December 11, 2023
Preparedby:   EricWilson, Communications Coordinator
Reviewedby:   SandieThone, CityClerk/HRDirector

MarcNevinski, CityAdministrator
Attachments:   WebsiteProjectTimeline updateDec2023

Background
InSeptember, theCityCouncilacceptedaproposal fromCivicPlus tobecometheCity’swebsite
providerafterthecurrentcontractwithRevizeendsinMarch2024. InNovember, thewebsite
project team (Shorewood staff) metwithCivicPlusProjectManagerHannaShoemaker to
outlineexpectations, determine goalsandassignactionitems (keydatesandmilestones are
outlined inthebelowchart. Theattachedproject taskandtimelinedocument goesintogreater
detail.) OnDecember6, thewebsiteproject teammetwiththeartdirect forthenewwebsite.  
Inthismeeting, partiesdiscussed projectaudience, information tobecommunicated with
design, examined variouswebsitedesignstodetermine preferences, andpreviewed themood
boardformat. TheCitywillbereceivingalayoutandcolorproposal byDecember 11andwill
submit theapproval forwebsite layoutandcolorsbyDecember 22.   

WebsiteProjectTimeline: KeyDates & Deliverables
Date(s) Deliverable(s)  
12/16/2023 ContentProcessingMeeting
12/18/2023 – 1/12/2024 ContentPreparation & Updates
12/22/2023 Layout & ColorApproval
1/18/2024 DesignConceptMeeting
2/9/2024 ContentChangeTracking

DesignConceptApproval
2/21/2024 WebsiteRevealMeeting
2/27/2024-2/29/2024 Training
3/4/2024-3/8/2024 WebsiteLaunchPreparation & ConfirmationMeeting
3/15/2024 WebsiteLaunchwithnewdomain
3/22/2024 ProjectCloseoutProcedures



Communication & Engagement
Launching thenewwebsite isexcitingbutmaycausesomeconfusion. Thebelowcommunications plan
isadraftedideaofstrategies tokeepresidentsandkeystakeholders informed.   

Pre-launchphase (Dec – Mar):  
1. BuildAnticipation:  

Landingpage (newsarticle) (Dec-Jan)  
Socialmediacampaign (Dec-Mar)  
Pressreleasestolocalnewspapers (Feb)  
ShoreReportArticle (Mar)  

2. Emailmarketing:  
Teaseremails (Jan-Mar)  
Finalemaildaybeforelaunch (Mar)  
Developemaillist/template tosendtopartnerswithannouncement (Feb)  
E-mailsignature footers (Feb-Mar)  

LaunchDay (March22 – tentative):  
1. Pressrelease (onwebsite, socialmedia, email):  

Highlightuniquefeatures, benefits, andaddedvalueofnewsite
Quotefromkeystaff, councilmembers

2. LiveLaunchEvent (tentative):  
Hostalivelauncheventonline
Showcase features, functionalities, benefits

Post-LaunchPhase (lateMarch-earlyApril):  
1. Emailfollow-up:  

Thankyoutoallwhovisitedsiteonlaunchday
Reminder thatthisisnewURLtoallcontact lists
FAQsaboutnewsite (ex, whathappensifIemailuseratoldURL?)  

2. PressRelease/article (ShoreReport, website)  
Reminder aboutnewURL

OngoingPromotion:  
Contentmarketing (website, socialmedia, ShoreReport asneeded): articleswithhow-to’son
newwebsite
Analytics

Financial Considerations: n/a

Action Requested: n/a






	Agenda
	2A Minutes WS 11-27-23
	2B Minutes Reg Mtg 11-27-23
	2C Verified Claims
	2D Permanent Appointment
	2E Liquor at Arctic Fever Event
	2F 2024 CC Reg Mtg Schedule
	2G Winter Operations Policy
	2H Seasonal Hires
	2I AV Equipment for SCEC
	4A 2023 TNT Public Meeting
	4B Employee Service Recognition
	6B 2040 Comrehensive Plan
	6C Variance to side-yard
	7A Pavement Management Update
	8A Utility & Recycling Rates Ordinance
	8B Zoning and Land Use Fee Ordinance
	8C 2024 Master Fee Schedule
	9A.1 Website Update



